M Wise Ally International Holdings Limited
WISE ALLY % £|E @I @Eﬂiﬁ BE /A\ ﬁ.l
(I/jcorporateq !n the Cayman lslinds with limited liability)

(RESEHETIMATMARAG])
Stock code B HX5E: 9918

2019

ANNUAL REPORT
£




5 8
AEER
MBRE

7 B A E
FTEREE
EEETmED M
EERONEER
EEERES

LEEARESE

BB RS

FEZEKEE

e BEARRR

mEEREER

FEReRER

RE M IERRMEE

R S 1 AN

—
1

42
60
68
69
71
74
75

CONTENTS

Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Four-Year Financial Summary

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors and Senior Management

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in-Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



DN HEEH

Corporate Information

BExg BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors

KEBRE(EE) Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman)
SRR A A (FTIECAE L) Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)
REREE(BELEE) Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)
BIFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
RO L Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

PEMTE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

AIESE R L Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

BREEE Audit Committee

ERLT LT (EE) Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (Chairperson)
TEGTE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

IESE s Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

FMEES Remuneration Committee

AESE L E () Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (Chairman)

BB XL Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley

BB Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

FEGRAE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

REEES Nomination Committee
TEMEE(EE) Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (Chairman)
KEBRE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond

RO L Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

AIESE L Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

REME Company Secretary

BB SR A FCPA - FCCA
REAREK

WRAF S
BB S A FCPA - FCCA

D

R S E R E

S E -y

AP LR T s B RE LB
BRAEER

IRESERRD B AT

Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit FCPA, FCCA
Authorised Representatives

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley
Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit FCPA, FCCA

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Hong Kong Legal Adviser

Bird & Bird

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2 Annual Report 2019



NEEHR

Corporate Information

EEERERIT

B LSELRITERAR
EITIRIT(BE) R AR
BERITARA A
BRER
ERNIYBRMERA
EERIEE

4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002
Cayman Islands

BBREBETEEE T
BEANENEE
RARIB385R (3 55
1/£3203-3207F
HERETERNBFIERE
Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002
Cayman Islands

EERMBEERDE
BIEBREFELARAR
BB

SEANER1835
AR D 5418
gt
ERBERZSFBRAR]
R A7 4C 5%

9918

ey

BFEER

YNGIE D

www.wiseally.com.hk

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Compliance Adviser
WAG Worldsec Corporate Finance Limited
Registered Office

4th Floor, Harbour Place
103 South Church Street
P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002
Cayman Islands

Headquarter and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Units 3203-3207, Tower 1
Enterprise Square Five, 38 Wang Chiu Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office in the
Cayman Islands

Harneys Fiduciary (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

P.O. Box 10240

Grand Cayman KY1-1002

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Place of Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code

9918

Stock Name

WISE ALLY INTL

Company’s Website
www.wiseally.com.hk

EERRZERARAA 3
201947k



R E
Financial Highlights

2019 2018
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RERE OPERATING RESULTS
Yezm Revenue 980,844 1,257,295
EF Gross profit 226,191 295,637
R RA Operating profit 63,253 107,384
RNATIERFEE AR Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
FRRM(BELTRY) the Company (including listing expenses) 33,390 77,018
RNRRERFTE ARBIE Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
FRHEM(TEELEMRY) the Company (excluding listing expenses) 50,737 86,033
FIRE AR R EE & T Basic and diluted earnings per share
(B (HK cents) 2.2 5.1
BRI FINANCIAL POSITION
mBEE Current assets 494,598 806,318
mENEE Current liabilities 479,342 770,146
ERBEE Non-current assets 117,094 137,319
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 80,195 48,774
NAFIERFE AEGER Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company 52,155 124,717
TEMHLER KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
ERX Gross profit margin 23.1% 23.5%
pERIpE Net profit margin 3.4% 6.1%
REnsml R (MeE) Return on equity (Note 1) 37.8% 86.4%
A& E PR (fiEE2) Return on total assets (Note 2) 4.3% 8.4%
BN L& Current ratio 1.0 timefg 1.0 timef&
FERAELE (M) Net gearing ratio (Note 3) 245.2% 280.8%
EE Notes:

RO MR TIREREFRAREZNTFEESRE 1.
FIAT100%E1E -

—_

The calculation of return on equity is based on profit for the year divided by
average balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.

2. BAERBEDNRFNEFRABEENTHES 2.
BRAT100%51E ©

The calculation of return on total assets is based on profit for the year divided
by average balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.

3. FAABELXRDVEARTEINBRESRESS 3.
BB A KB HE 25 IR LA T100%51 & ©

The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total bank borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

4 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Four-Year Financial Summary

mEXE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BZ12A3101LEE
For the year ended 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016
FEx FHET FHETT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
& Revenue 980,844 1,257,295 1,232,653 687,659
K A Operating profit 63,253 107,384 95,408 3,365
RRRERFEE A Profit for the year attributable to
JEAE F R A equity holders of the Company 33,390 77,018 74,172 982
HEEEBEEME CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016
FET FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
mEBEE Current assets 494,598 806,318 802,099 438,781
mEEE Current liabilities 479,342 770,146 827,414 502,537
ERBEE Non-current assets 117,094 137,319 78,991 71,068
E S EIN=N Non-current liabilities 80,195 48,774 145 2,328
RABERFEEA Equity attributable to equity holders
JE(E = of the Company 52,155 124,717 53,531 4,984
BEERIERARAR 5
201945
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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” and
each a “Director”) of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the
annual results and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (“CY2019”).

We are an established electronics manufacturing services (“EMS”)
provider offering full turnkey solutions to our customers with particular
focus in consumer electronic products that covers a range of product
applications including vapour products, appliances, commercial controls
and heating, ventilation and air-conditionings (“HVACs”).

We provide highly integrated and comprehensive range of services across
the consumer EMS value chain coupled with capabilities to manufacture
a diversified product range and an efficient production process. We have
strategic collaborations, stable and established business relationships with
internationally renowned and industry-leading brand owners. We possess
strong technical expertise and product development capability which
facilitate our business expansion into new markets. We are committed to
stringent quality assurance; and our professional management team are
experienced, visionary and with an entrepreneurial spirit. These principal
strengths are crucial to our success and essential to our future growth.

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed (the
“Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by way of Hong Kong public offering
and international placing (the “Global Offering”) on 10 January 2020
(the “Listing Date”). The net proceeds received by the Company, after
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$74.0 million. The Directors believe that the Listing
would strengthen our corporate profile, credibility and competitiveness
as well as facilitate the implementation of our business strategies and
expansion plans.

We intend to continue to strengthen our leading position in the consumer
EMS industry, enhance our overall competitiveness and increase our
market share in the future. We aim to achieve these goals through: (a)
intensifying the sales and marketing efforts to major consumer EMS
industry players in North America, Europe and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"); (b) increasing our production capacity by expanding
our manufacturing platform in South East Asia region and the PRC; (c)
enhancing our production efficiency and capability by acquiring new
machinery and equipment and upgrading the production facility at our
existing factory located in Dongguan; (d) strengthening our research
capability for the development and provision of Internet of Things
(“loT”) related solutions; and (e) enhancing our information technology
infrastructure.

6 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Chairman’s Statement
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The Group recorded revenue of HK$980.8 million and achieved
operating profit of HK$63.3 million for CY2019. Profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company (including the listing
expenses) amounted to HK$33.4 million. Excluding the non-recurring
listing expenses recorded in CY2019 in the amount of HK$17.3 million,
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
would be HK$50.7 million.

PROSPECTS

In early 2020, we expect gradual recovery in market sentiments and
orders from the United States (the “U.S.”) customers due to the reduction
in the U.S.-China trade tension. However, the unprecedented novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has adversely affected different
countries across the globe, such as the U.S., Canada, the European
Union and other major countries. Due to different protection measures
adopted by the countries where our major customers and suppliers are
located, their daily operations and businesses are adversely affected.
Consequently, certain orders from customers are deferred, some of our
materials supplies are interrupted with extended lead time and shipment
schedules are disrupted, which would cast significant impacts to our
operations and financial results in 2020.

The year 2020 will be challenging and full of uncertainties. With our
extensive experience in the EMS industry, strong technical knowledge
and manufacturing capabilities and long history with our business
partners, we are confident that we could weather the storm and continue
to provide quality services and products to our customers and maximize
our values to our Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation to our customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuous support. | would like to also thank the
management team and all staff members for their contribution during the
year.

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Management Di cussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

We are an established EMS provider offering full turnkey solutions to our
customers with particular focus in consumer electronic products. We
provide a comprehensive range of services including design development
and enhancement, provision of technical advice and engineering
solutions, selection and procurement of materials, production, quality
control and logistics management. Our solutions aim to combine
electronic components and mechanical and electromechanical
components to form a multifunctional module to facilitate the overall
function of the finished electronic products of our customers. The
deliverables of our manufacturing services include printed circuit board
assembly (“PCBA(s)”), multifunctional modules and finished electronic
products, covering a range of product applications including vapour
products, appliances, commercial controls and HVAC.

Given that our Group mainly engages in the provision of EMS for
multifunctional modules, our Group occupies the mid-to-downstream
of the EMS industry value chain. Leveraging on our product design and
development capabilities and manufacturing knowhow, we have been
able to provide product design optimisation and engineering solutions to
our customers, thereby positioning us as a value-creator at the front-end
of the supply chain.

For CY2019, our products were shipped to over 21 (for the year ended
31 December 2018 (“CY2018”): 20) countries and regions, and the
U.S. continued to be our largest market, which contributed HK$565.4
million (CY2018: HK$800.8 million), or 57.6% (CY2018: 63.7%) of our
total revenue. The decrease in sales to the U.S. for CY2019 compared to
CY2018 was mainly due to the cessation of business relationship with
Customer B in January 2019. Excluding the effect of Customer B, our
sales to the U.S. for CY2019 increased by HK$154.2 million, or 39.3%
compared to that of CY2018, which was primarily due to the increase
in demand from Customer A, which increased by HK$92.2 million, or
50.7% from HK$181.8 million for CY2018 to HK$274.0 million for
CY2019, and other major customers. For CY2019, United Kingdom
contributed 21.2% (CY2018: 11.7%) of our total revenue, Hong
Kong, the PRC, France and the rest of the other countries and regions
contributed the remaining 21.2% (CY2018: 24.6%) of our total revenue.

8 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2020, with the signing of the first phase of the U.S.-
China trade agreement, it was expected that U.S.-China trade tension
would be reduced and the market sentiments and demands from the U.S.
customers will gradually recover. However, the recent outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the “Novel Coronavirus Outbreak”) has
brought uncertainties to the global economies and the Group would face
a lot of challenges in 2020. Recently, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
has been spreading in many countries simultaneously and the World
Health Organisation has recently declared it as a pandemic. The U.S.,
Canada, the European Union and other major countries in the world,
where our major customers and suppliers are located, have announced
closure of external borders; prohibit non-essential travelling and other
applicable measures. Consequently, the daily operations of some of
our customers and suppliers have been adversely affected and in turn
led to (i) postponement of delivery of some of our products; (ii) further
extension in materials lead time; and (iii) disruptions in our logistics and
supply chain. As a result, our operations and financial results in the first
half year of 2020 would be adversely affected. If this unprecedented
pandemic continues in the coming months, the second half year of 2020
will be further affected. Having said that, we will closely monitor the
risks and uncertainties in connection with the pandemic and will work
closely with our customers, suppliers and business partners to minimize
any adverse impacts arising therefrom.

As stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 December 2019
(the “Prospectus”), we intend to set up a production facility in South East
Asia region (the “New Asia Plant”) with potential joint venture partner
to expand our production capacity outside of the PRC with an aim to
(i) diversify our operational risk; (ii) benefit from lower production cost;
(iii) possess international footprint and allow flexibility in production
arrangement to cater different needs of the customers; and (iv) tackle the
Sino-U.S. trade war. As of the date of this report, we have commenced
negotiation with the potential joint venture partner for the terms of
cooperation. We expect to kick-off the set-up of the New Asia Plant
by the first half year of 2020 but this timeline will be dependent on a
number of factors, such as the negotiation progress with the potential
joint venture partner and possible disruption of business development
and operations due to the novel coronavirus pandemic.

Despite the challenging business environment and uncertainties in the
global economies, the Group will continue to maintain close relationship
with our customers, suppliers and business partners; to impose strict
cost controls; to focus on our product quality; and to intensify our sales
and marketing efforts to major consumer EMS industry players in North
America, Europe and the PRC.

BEREFIERER AR 9
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of HK$980.8 million for CY2019, reflecting
a decrease of HK$276.5 million, or 22.0% as compared to revenue of
HK$1,257.3 million for CY2018. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the cessation of business relationship with Customer B in January
2019 partly offset by the increase in revenue from Customer A and other
major customers.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales decreased by HK$207.0 million, or 21.5% from HK$961.7
million for CY2018 to HK$754.7 million for CY2019. Our cost of
sales mainly comprised of costs of materials, labour costs and factory
overhead. The overall decrease in the amount was generally in line with
the drop in revenue during CY2019.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by HK$69.4 million, or 23.5% from HK$295.6
million for CY2018 to HK$226.2 million for CY2019 while the gross
profit margin decreased from 23.5% for CY2018 to 23.1% for CY2019.
The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin were mainly due
to the drop in revenue from Customer B whose products entailed a
relatively higher profit margin.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by HK$14.1 million, or
19.0% from HK$74.1 million for CY2018 to HK$60.0 million for
CY2019. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in sales
commission expenses and freight and custom declarations expenses,
which were generally in line with the change in product mix and drop in
revenue.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by HK$2.9 million, or 2.6% from
HK$111.0 million for CY2018 to HK$108.1 million for CY2019. The
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in corporate expenses
incurred as a result of the cessation of certain centralised functions
provided by the related parties for CY2019. Such decrease was partially
offset by the increase in listing expenses incurred during CY2019.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Finance costs, net

Net finance costs increased by HK$8.1 million, or 72.3% from HK$11.2
million for CY2018 to HK$19.3 million for CY2019. The increase was
mainly due to the combined effect of (i) the increase in interest expenses
on bank borrowings of HK$3.9 million; (ii) the increase in interest
expenses on lease liabilities of HK$0.3 million; and (iii) the decrease
in interest income for CY2019 in the amount of HK$3.9 million as no
interest income was received from the then immediate holding company.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by HK$8.5 million, or 44.5%, from
HK$19.1 million for CY2018 to HK$10.6 million for CY2019. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in profit before income tax. Our
effective tax rate for CY2019 was 24.1% (CY2018: 19.9%). Excluding
the listing expenses of HK$17.3 million and HK$9.0 million recognised
in administrative expenses for CY2019 and CY2018 respectively, our
effective tax rate for CY2019 was 17.3% (CY2018: 18.2%) since the
listing expenses were not tax deductible.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year decreased by HK$43.6
million, or 56.6%, from HK$77.0 million for CY2018 to HK$33.4 million
for CY2019.

Adjusted net profit

Excluding the listing expenses of HK$17.3 million and HK$9.0 million
recognised in administrative expenses for CY2019 and CY2018
respectively, our adjusted net profit for the year were HK$50.7 million
and HK$86.0 million for CY2019 and CY2018 respectively.

The term adjusted net profit is not defined under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. As a non-HKFRSs measure, it is presented
because the management believes that adjusted net profit helps identify
underlying trends in the Group’s business that could otherwise be
distorted by the effect of the expenses that are included in income from
operations and net profit through eliminating potential impacts of certain
unusual and non-recurring items that the management does not consider
to be indicative of its operating performance.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily through
a combination of internally generated funds from its operating activities
and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintained
cash and cash equivalents of HK$138.6 million (2018: HK$46.2 million).
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings were HK$266.6
million (2018: HK$396.4 million). The Group had net debt of HK$128.0
million (2018: HK$350.2 million) as at the year end date. For details
of the banking borrowings, please refer to note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group’s net gearing ratio decreased from 280.8% as at 31 December
2018 to 245.2% as at 31 December 2019, which was primarily due
to the decrease of total net debt by HK$222.2 million, or 63.4% from
HK$350.2 million as at 31 December 2018 to HK$128.0 million as at 31
December 2019 and partially offset by the decrease in total equity from
HK$124.7 million as at 31 December 2018 to HK$52.2 million as at 31
December 2019. Net gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings net
of cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by
100%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group incurred total capital expenditures of HK$19.4 million for
CY2019 (CY2018: HK$23.1 million) for additions of properties, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for in the amount of HK$2.2 million (2018:
HK$1.1 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was not involved in any legal
proceedings pending or, to the best knowledge of the Board, threatened
against our Group which could have a material adverse effect on the
Group'’s business or operations. Besides, the Group had cross guarantees
arrangement as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 as disclosed in the
Prospectus. Such cross guarantees arrangement had been released upon
the Listing. Saved as disclosed above, our Directors confirm that as at
31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

1 2 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save for the reorganisation of the Group as described in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the
Prospectus and the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2019, there were no significant investments held by
the Group (2018: Nil).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had certain bank deposits pledged
to secure the Group’s banking facilities in the amount of HK$10.0
million (2018: HK$10.0 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the United States dollars
(“USD”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). Most of the Group’s sales
proceeds are received in USD and approximately 50% of the Group’s
purchases and operating expenses are denominated in RMB.

The Group did not enter into any derivative instruments to hedge against
its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group closely monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure
from time to time and will adopt a proactive but prudent approach to
minimize the relevant exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately 1,500
(2018: 2,600) employees. For CY2019, the Group’s total employees
benefit expenses amounted to HK$195.4 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 23.2% from HK$254.5 million for CY2018.
The Group adopts a remuneration policy which is commensurate with
job nature, qualification and experience of employees. In addition
to the provision of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees based
on individual performance. The remuneration packages and policies are
reviewed periodically. The Group also provides in-house and external
training programs to its employees. The emoluments of the Directors are
decided by the Board and the remuneration committee of the Company
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme on 10 December
2019 for the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants of
the scheme, including Directors, full-time employees of and advisers
and consultants to the Group. Details of the share option scheme of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
the Report of the Directors in this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has set out its future plans in the Prospectus. As part of its
future plans, the Group plans to establish production facilities in South
East Asia region and expand manufacturing platform in the PRC by
acquiring new surface mount technology (“SMT”) lines, upgrading the
production facility at the existing plant and strengthening the research
and development capability for the development and provision of loT
related solutions. The future plans will be funded by a balanced mix of
internal resources, borrowings and proceeds from the Global Offering.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of subsequent events are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (“Mr. Chu”), aged 67, is one of the
founders of our Group and was appointed as a Director on 15 January
2019 and re-designated as an executive Director and the Chairman of our
Company on 11 March 2019. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, corporate governance promotion, strategic planning, and major
decision-making of our Group.

Mr. Chu is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to the
establishment of our Group in July 2010, Mr. Chu worked for Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Defond Group”)
since June 1990 as the chairman responsible for technical, information
technology and research and development functions and later for the
management and operation of the EMS division. From May 1977 to
early 1990s, Mr. Chu worked as an engineer for a company principally
engaged in the supply of electromechanical motion systems and
solutions.

Mr. Chu graduated from the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S.
with a bachelor of science in mechanical engineering in March 1977.

Mr. Chu is the elder brother of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company). He is also a
director and shareholder of each of Smart Union Global Group Limited
and Smartview Investments Limited, each of which has an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 51, is the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company, and was appointed as a
Director on 15 January 2019 and re-designated as an executive Director
and CEO on 11 March 2019. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and an authorised representative of the Company. He
joined our Group on 30 August 2010 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning, business development and major
decision-making of our Group.

Mr. Tsang is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsang
joined the Defond Group as chief financial officer in January 2005, where
he was responsible for overseeing the overall finance and accounting
functions, taxation matters and handling banking relationships. He was
promoted to chief operating officer in April 2007, where from August
2010 to December 2015, he was responsible for overseeing the overall
production, operations, human resources functions and supply chain
in relation to both our Group and the Defond Group. Since December
2015, Mr. Tsang has been responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning, business development and major decision-making of
our Group exclusively.

Prior to joining the Defond Group, from April 1999 to December
2004, Mr. Tsang worked for Digital Lighting Co. Limited, a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing of lighting products, initially as
accounting manager and was later promoted as director of finance and
administration and was responsible for overseeing finance, internal audit,
administration and information system functions.
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Mr. Tsang attended Springfield College in the U.S. from January 1989
to May 1990 and then studied at the University of Washington in the
U.S. from October 1990 to December 1992, obtaining a bachelor of
business administration in December 1992. Mr. Tsang has been selected
for membership in Beta Gamma Sigma, the honor society for collegiate
schools of business, and received a certificate issued by the University
of Washington Chapter in May 1992. Mr. Tsang became a certified
public accountant of Washington State Board of Accountancy in August
1995, and became a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 1998.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (“Mr. Chan”), aged 67, was appointed as an
executive Director and designated as the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 19 March 2019. Mr. Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9 April
2018 as the executive vice president and was later promoted to the
position of chief operation officer on 1 October 2018. He participates in
strategic planning, business development, major decision-making of our
Group and is responsible for developing, establishing, and directing the
execution of the operating policies of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, from July 2013 to April 2018, Mr. Chan was a
managing director of AstroNova Limited, a member of Astrotech Group.
Astrotech Group is principally engaged in electronics manufacturing and
Mr. Chan was responsible for developing new business, leading new
technology development and coordinating the production process with
the manufacturing plant. In 2005, Mr. Chan joined Computime Limited,
a subsidiary of Computime Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 320) principally engaged in
the designing and manufacturing of intelligent electronic controls and
internet of things devices for global markets, where his last position was
president of control solutions (EMS business) before he left in September
2012. From November 2002 to March 2005, Mr. Chan worked for Leica
Geosystems Limited, a surveying measurement solutions provider, as a
vice president of sales and marketing China, responsible for managing
sales, marketing and business development in China. From April 1985
to February 2002, Mr. Chan worked for a technology and engineering
company listed in the U.S., holding a senior position responsible for sales
and marketing of thermal control and safety devices in Asia.

Mr. Chan obtained a certificate in supervisory management and
an ordinary certificate in mechanical engineering from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic in Hong Kong (the predecessor of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in March 1974 and November 1975 respectively.
He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly by Hong
Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management Association in
August 1982. He attended all courses on campus and completed the
executive program offered by the National University of Singapore and
was awarded a certificate jointly issued by Graduate School of Business
of Stanford University and Faculty of Business Administration of National
University of Singapore in 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (“Ms. Ling”), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. She is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. She
is also the chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Ling was appointed as an independent non-executive director and
the chairperson of the audit committee of Digital Hollywood Interactive
Limited in November 2017, a global online game publisher for China-
based game developers, whose shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2022) since December 2017.

Ms. Ling has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
She was an assurance partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and retired
from the partnership in June 2013. Ms. Ling has served as a member of
the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning) since October 2016, a board
member of the Estate Agents Authority since November 2015, a council
member of The Education University of Hong Kong since April 2015, a
member of Hospital Governing Committee of Hospital Authority since
April 2015, a council member of The Hong Kong Federation of Youth
Groups since October 2014 and an executive committee member of the
Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association since May 2001. She previously
served as a board member of the Employees Compensation Assistance
Fund Board from July 2006 to June 2012.

Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants, Canada, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. She is also an accredited general mediator of
the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited. Ms. Ling
also serves as a member of Practising Members Working Committee of
The Association of Hong Kong Accountants, a member of Professional
Development Committee of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association
and an executive committee member of Regulatory Committee of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association. Ms. Ling
received the Outstanding Accountant Ambassador award from the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

Ms. Ling obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (the predecessor of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in Hong Kong in October 1977 and a master of science in corporate
governance and directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
Hong Kong in September 2014.

BEREFIERER AR
2019435

17



EERGREEE

Directors and Senior Management

ZHEMEE(TZEERE] © 5655 7B2019F12 A
10RBZEABUIIFNTES  TEZBERN
EEREBYER - BAARELZESEREMN
EEFMEZEE G REREZEEKE -

PRHEARRERIERARARIZHITES -
ZARFERERHCERERHBRBLEE
EIRRES - WH20195F7 ARBERFAER E
(BRARER - 1073) - EEAMBFITLRERR
RNElEF  ZAREEREFELTRIFELTZR
BT EMAIKE » WR1990F 12 ARBE R FTER
LR R : 666) © FHEAENR199257 A
MAFTTIREAR A RIEELIE - R200459
BHESRITES - HR2009F3 AREZTA
EEZgrIBEUTHEANTIRERRARE
HELIE - 22007411 B E201543 A HIR -
2= 50 4 B H fE Rotol Singapore Ltd Z JE# 7T E
f& © Rotol Singapore Ltd#201148 A LEA AN
WELHRGABRARIERLEM © #H1R20104
6 AE2013F6 ABEIEAPEIZERER AR Z
WITES - Z R0 ABRAGEIM EmM AR (R
BAR5R © 8032) ° 1201342 A E2013F4 A H
M HERErEeABEZERERAR ZIE
WITES  ZARABIAERLETAA (K
BREE - 1380) ° 2006512 A E2007F5A
HAMI - 1% % H £ Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (3R
8 A Nam Tai Property Inc.) (R HIFEH
S LT 2B FRERBHER) (BRH KRR -
NTP) Z 1TEAEE, ° 7220043 A £ 200652 A
HARS » 1% % H{TNam Tai Electronic & Electrical
Products Limited Z I JEBTTE S + W 2006
F2AZE2007F4 A EAEREIERITES - R
HEE=EM © Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical
Products Limited 7B 22 Fr £ R _E 1 (AR D55 -
2633) ° 2007F 1 HE2007F4 AR » &
78 B H £ ).1.C. Technology Company Limited
(RBEPREEEREREEBRAR) ZIFRNITE
£ ZARABRAMEREMAR (BROAN
987) °

F AR 1986F F XN EB The University of
East Angliall ER{S 2 2B+ 87 - A K 11988
F LA B £ B 4& BU{5 8 2 The City University
Business School Z FE 2218 - 22f] -

FRERREBESZ LG GOIFEETF 18
(BHRP)ZMERY  FAEGEFRERE
RIZRETED  FoRGIHERERHTER)
XRERPHRFIRURHEEEE)XRER
BHRAEAS -

18

Annual Report 2019

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (“Mr. Lee”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.

Mr. Lee is an executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited,
which is principally engaged in the provision of corporate finance
advisory services and asset management services and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1073), since July 2019. Mr.
Lee is also the chairman of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited which
is principally engaged in investment in listed and unlisted financial
instruments and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 666) since December 1990. Mr. Lee first joined SHK Hong Kong
Industries Limited as a manager in July 1992 and became an executive
director in September 2004. He was appointed as the chairman of the
board and ceased to act as the managing director of SHK Hong Kong
Industries Limited in March 2009. From November 2007 to March 2015,
Mr. Lee was a non-executive chairman of Rotol Singapore Ltd which was
listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Limited until August
2011. He acted as an executive director of Viva China Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032),
from June 2010 to June 2013. From February 2013 to April 2013, he was
a non-executive director of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1380). From December 2006 to May 2007, he was the chief executive
officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (currently known as Nam Tai
Property Inc.), an electronics manufacturing services provider listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: NTP). From March 2004 to
February 2006, he was an independent non-executive director of Nam
Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited, and from February 2006 to
April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-executive director. At the time
of his directorship, Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2633). From
January 2007 to April 2007, he was also a non-executive director of J.I.C.
Technology Company Limited (currently known as China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 987).

Mr. Lee graduated from The University of East Anglia in England in
1986 with a bachelor of science and obtained a distinction in master of
science from The City University Business School in London in 1988.

Mr. Lee is a responsible officer licensed to conduct type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity, type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activity, type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the SFO.
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Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in September 1992
and is currently a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Szeto is the co-
founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in
September 1996 and has served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto
& Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan
& Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant
solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled clerk in Messrs.
Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992
and then as an assistant solicitor with the same firm from September
1992 to October 1993.

Mr. Szeto graduated from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong with
a bachelor of laws in December 1989 and was awarded the postgraduate
certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in June
1990. Since June 2017, Mr. Szeto has served as an independent executive
director of Evergreen Products Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1962).

Senior Management

Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 42, is the vice president
of finance and management information system of the Company and has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary since 11 March
2019. He is also an authorised representative of the Company. He is
mainly responsible for the overall finance and accounting functions and
management information system of our Group. He joined our Group on
2 December 2013 as the group finance controller and was responsible for
supervising and managing financial matters.

Mr. Kwong was appointed as the group financial controller of the Defond
Group in December 2013 where he was responsible for supervising and
managing financial matters for both our Group and the Defond Group.
He has been responsible for supervising and managing financial matters
solely for our Group since December 2015.
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Prior to joining the Defond Group, from June 2010 to December 2013,
Mr. Kwong was the group financial controller of Valuetronics Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the provision of electronics
manufacturing services, and the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Singapore Exchange Limited (stock code: BN2), where he
was responsible for the group’s finance and accounting functions, tax
planning, internal controls, management and financial reporting matters
and investor relations. From September 2000 to December 2009, Mr.
Kwong served in the assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
in Hong Kong and his last position was senior audit manager, where
he was responsible for managing audit engagements from planning to
completion for a number of major private and listed companies in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Kwong graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong with a bachelor of business administration in accountancy in
November 2000. He has been a fellow member of the Association
of Charted Certified Accountants since November 2010 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
November 2011.

Mr. Tsang Keung, aged 52, is the vice president of client base
management of our Group. He is mainly responsible for identifying and
developing new sales opportunities, assessing, formulating and executing
sales strategy for our Group. He joined our Group on 20 August 2018.

Before working with us, Mr. Tsang Keung worked for Computime
Limited, a subsidiary of Computime Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 320) principally
engaged in designing and manufacturing intelligent electronic controls
and internet of things devices for global markets, from November 2004
to August 2018. He was the marketing director when he joined the
company and in March 2008, he was promoted to the general manager
responsible for managing the overall business unit responsible for global
marquee account management, product and pricing strategy. Mr. Tsang
Keung worked as a Asia Pacific marketing manager for Ridge Tool Ltd
of Emerson Electric from January 1997 to January 2001, and Asia Pacific
marketing director for Liebert Asia Limited (currently known as Emerson
Network Power (Hong Kong) Limited) from February 2001 to March
2004, responsible for identifying market synergies, developing regional
marketing infrastructure and common marketing collateral and messages,
supporting regional events, researching customer databases and creating
e-business platforms and functional CRM tools for the region. In April
1995, Mr. Tsang Keung joined Bong Art International Ltd., a company
authorised by 3M Hong Kong Limited to convert 3M brand products for
its customers as a manager/partner and was responsible for management,
new product design and development. He left the company in December
1997. During August 1989 to March 1995, Mr. Tsang Keung worked

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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for 3M Hong Kong Limited, a subsidiary of a multinational company
principally engages in manufacturing consumer and industrial products as
a division supervisor of the China region, responsible for division business
management, product portfolio management and pricing strategy.

Mr. Tsang Keung graduated from University of East Asia in Macau (the
predecessor of the University of Macau) with a bachelor of business
administration in July 1989. He also obtained a master of business
administration, which is a distance learning part-time programme, from
the Open University of Hong Kong in June 2000.

Mr. Tsang Keung was awarded a diploma in marketing by the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in December 1994. He is also a certified
professional marketer (Asia Pacific) conferred by the board of the
directors of the Asia Pacific Marketing Federation in August 1998.

Ms. Fu Mei Yuk (“Ms. Fu”), aged 49, joined our Group on 3 May 2016 as
the vice president of business development of our Group. She is mainly
responsible for developing and executing the business development and
marketing strategy of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, from March 2006 to April 2016, Ms. Fu
worked for Computime Limited, a subsidiary of Computime Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 320) principally engaged in designing and manufacturing
intelligent electronic controls and internet of things devices for global
markets, as a senior business manager, the head of business development
and a general manager of business development, where she was
responsible for business development, pitching for new business and
new customers to achieve company targets from worldwide market,
driving new platforms and new products roadmap with effective
execution to support the business growth of the company. From March
1997 to September 2005, Ms. Fu worked for IDT Data System Limited, a
subsidiary of IDT International Limited which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 167), a company principally engaged
in designing, developing, manufacturing, selling, and marketing various
consumer electronic products. As a senior sales and marketing manager,
Ms. Fu was responsible for preparing and implementing sales strategy,
monitoring sales performance, planning for new product platforms
and exploring and developing new business and new markets. From
September 1994 to December 1996, Ms. Fu worked for Double Kingdom
Limited, a company principally engaged in designing and manufacturing
of telecom products where her last position was assistant marketing
manager, responsible for preparing sales analysis, implementing
marketing plan, handling key customers accounts, following up new
inquiries, developing new markets, organising trade shows and executing
exhibition participation.
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Ms. Fu graduated from Lancaster University in the United Kingdom in
July 1994 with a bachelor of arts degree in organisational studies and
sociology. She also obtained a diploma in sociology from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College in Hong Kong (the predecessor of Hong Kong Shue
Yan University) in July 1992.

Ms. Wong Ching (“Ms. Wong”), aged 45, was appointed as the vice
president of supply base management of our Group on 1 January 2018.
She is mainly responsible for overseeing the strategic sourcing and
procurement processes of our Group. She joined our Group on 29 July
2010 and was responsible for purchasing and sourcing functions.

Ms. Wong joined Defond Electrical Industries Limited (“DEIL”) as the
material manager in March 2001 and was responsible for the strategic
sourcing for electronic components, leading the team for price and
terms negotiation, driving the alternative sourcing program to increase
the material cost competitiveness, developing the supplier partnerships
and managing vendor performance. She was later promoted to senior
purchasing manager in June 2008, and was responsible for overseeing
and establishing sourcing strategy, driving the material cost reduction
conducting price and contract negotiation, supplier development and
performance management. She was promoted to the head of corporate
sourcing in September 2012. She worked for Defond Holdings (H.K.)
Co. Limited from December 2015 to May 2016 as the head of corporate
sourcing. From July 2010 to May 2016, she was responsible for
overseeing the strategic sourcing for both our Group and the Defond
Group. Since May 2016, she has been responsible for overseeing
sourcing and procurement solely for our Group.

Prior to joining DEIL in March 2001, Ms. Wong worked as a purchasing
officer in Means Come Limited, an electronic components distributor
from 1996 to 2000, responsible for purchasing electronic components.

Ms. Wong obtained a diploma in management studies from the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of the University of Hong
Kong in Hong Kong in December 2001 and obtained a bachelor of
arts in business studies from the University of Greenwich in the United
Kingdom in March 2016 where she attended the course in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Wong Kin Man (“Mr. Wong”), aged 61, joined our Group on 13
December 2010 as the operations director of our Group. He is mainly
responsible for developing and improving manufacture processes
and plans. Mr. Wong has served as a director of Dongguan Wise Ally
Industrial Co., Ltd* (= FERE X B R A 7)) since 13 December 2010.

Prior to joining our Group, from May 2007 to December 2010, Mr.
Wong worked for DEIL as the operations manager and was later
promoted to a position of senior operations manager. Mr. Wong was
employed by Kam Yuen (Group) International Limited, a manufacturer of
metal parts, from August 2000 to March 2007 as senior plant manager,
and he was responsible for exploring new business opportunities,
overseeing company-side quality improvement and establishing new
business units and factories. From September 1994 to December 1998,
Mr. Wong worked for IDT Technology Limited, a company principally
engages in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks, electronic
thermometers, barometers and weather stations, as assistant quality
assurance manager, quality assurance manager, acting factory manager
and factory manager respectively, responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of the SMT factory and setting up a new factory for bonding
operations, development of local staff and productivity enhancement.
In July 1993, Mr. Wong joined a company principally engages in the
design and manufacturing of audio products, namely Hi Tech Precision
Products Limited, as quality control manager, responsible for setting up
efficient quality control systems based on ISO 9000 requirement and
training staff members responsible for quality control to handle quality
matter independently. He left the company in June 1994. From March
1988 to June 1993, Mr, Wong worked for Team Concepts Manufacturing
Limited, a company principally engages in manufacturing telephone and
answering machines, as quality assurance supervisor, incoming quality
control supervisor and assistant quality assurance manager respectively,
and he was responsible for overseeing quality management and the
development and implementation of 1ISO 9000 quality system. From
October 1983 to February 1988, Mr. Wong worked for Eastern Frontier
Company Ltd, a company principally engages in manufacturing power
transformers and power adaptors, as a quality control supervisor, and he
was responsible for quality management, developing quality standards
and quality inspection.

Mr. Wong was awarded the ordinary certificate in textile technology and
the higher certificate in textile technology by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(the predecessor of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November
1978 and November 1980 respectively.

*  for identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

REORGANISATION AND GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 15 January 2019 and was registered as
a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) on 14 March 2019. Pursuant to the
completion of the reorganisation as detailed in the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the Prospectus
to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. The shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 January 2020 by way of the
Global Offering as described in the section headed “Structure and
Conditions of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 10 January 2020 by way of Global Offering and
the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering, after deducting the
underwriting fees and other related listing expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$74.0 million. As of the date of this annual report,
the Company does not anticipate any change on its plan on the use
of proceeds as stated in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

As stated in the Prospectus, the intended uses of the net proceeds raised
from the Global Offering are set out as follows:

e approximately 35.0% will be used for increasing our production
capacity by expanding our manufacturing platform in South East Asia
region and the PRC;

e approximately 26.3% will be used for enhancing our production
efficiency and capability by acquiring new machinery and
equipment and upgrading the production facility at our existing
production plant in Dongguan;

e approximately 5.5% will be used for strengthening our research
capability for the development and provision of 10T related solutions;

e approximately 5.8% will be used for increasing our marketing efforts
in North America and Europe;

e approximately 3.5% will be used for enhancing our manufacturing
execution system and information technology infrastructure;

e approximately 14.5% will be used for repayment of a capital
expenditure bank loan; and

e approximately 9.4% will be used as our general working capital.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the Group has
not utilised any net proceeds raised from the Global Offering. The Group
will gradually utilise the net proceeds in accordance with the intended
purposes as disclosed in the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of electronic products.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 68.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$20.0
million, representing HK$0.01 per ordinary Share (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”), for the year ended 31 December 2019. Subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(“2020 AGM”), the Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be paid on or
before Tuesday, 23 June 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 9 June 2020.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2020 AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 2 June 2020. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28
May 2020 to Tuesday, 2 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, unregistered
holder(s) of share(s) of the Company should ensure that all share transfer
document(s) accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2020.

For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend (subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2020 AGM), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 8 June 2020
to Tuesday, 9 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holder(s) of share(s) of
the Company should ensure that all transfer document(s) accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June
2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December
2019 including an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company, important events affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of the financial year, and a discussion on the Group’s future
business development are provided in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 14. These discussions form part of this Report of
the Directors. Other than the events set out in other parts of this annual
report, no other significant event affecting the Group has occurred since
the end of the year under review and up to the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility through
minimizing the impacts to the community and environment while
safeguarding the health and safety of the public.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year under review, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Company.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the valuable assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to its employees and emphasize the personal development
of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. Despite the challenging business conditions, the Group aims
to continue providing products and services that meet or exceed its
customers’ requirement or expectation for quality, reliability and value.
In accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build long term
and mutually beneficial relationships with its suppliers, ensuring reliable
delivery to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes during
the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$1.0
million.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events occurring after the reporting period are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent series of reorganisation
arrangements, which are more particularly described in the subsection
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the
Prospectus.

The Company had 1,000,000 issued Shares immediately before
the capitalisation issue and the Global Offering. On 10 January
2020, immediately before the Global Offering, the Company issued
1,499,000,000 new Shares to the Shareholders whose name appeared
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on a
date prior to the Global Offering by way of capitalisation of an amount of
HK$14,990,000 standing in the share premium account of the Company
credited as a result of the Global Offering. On 10 January 2020, pursuant
to the Global Offering, the Company issued 500,000,000 new Shares
at HK$0.25 each. The net proceeds received by the Company from the
Global Offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and other related
listing expenses), amounted to approximately HK$74.0 million. Details
of the Global Offering were disclosed in the Prospectus. Immediately
upon completion of the Global Offering and as at the date of this report,
the total number of issued shares of the Company is 2,000,000,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, distributable reserves of the Company is nil.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Details of the Company’s dividend policy are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, our Group has entered
into certain agreements with the banks for the conditional release of
the pledges and guarantees granted by our related parties to secure our
banking facilities. Under the relevant clauses stated in these agreements,
since the Listing Date, the abovementioned pledges and guarantees
have been released and replaced by our Company’s corporate guarantee
together with certain covenants including Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond
and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson shall jointly maintain, directly or
indirectly, at least 50% of the shareholding of the Company.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the previous financial years is set out in the section headed “Four-Year
Financial Summary” in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreements, save for the share option scheme
of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 January 2019)

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 January 2019)

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)
(appointed on 19 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (appointed on 10 December 2019)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (appointed on 10 December 2019)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 10 December 2019)

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Chi Ming
who was appointed by the Board on 19 March 2019 shall hold office
only until the 2020 AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2020
AGM.

Pursuant to Article 109 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond and Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley shall retire from office by
rotation at the 2020 AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2020
AGM.

All of them will offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM. Details
of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2020 AGM are set out in the
circular to Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a director service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date (subject to termination in certain circumstances as
stipulated in the relevant director service agreement).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letter of appointment).

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has a service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions — Master Purchase
Agreement

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the transactions between DEIL and the
Group would constitute continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) after the Listing.

DEIL is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with
limited liability and beneficially held as to 50% by Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond and as to 50% by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (younger
brother of Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond), each being a controlling
Shareholder and a connected person of the Company. As such, DEIL
is an associate of connected persons of our Company pursuant to Rule
14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.

On 19 December 2019, Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“HK Wise Ally”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and DEIL entered
into a master purchase agreement (the “Master Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which HK Wise Ally and its subsidiary agreed to purchase,
and DEIL and its subsidiaries (“DEIL Group”) agreed to supply and/or
manufacture a variety of switches (the “Products”) to the Group for a
term commencing on the Listing Date until 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Master Purchase Agreement, DEIL Group agreed to
supply the Products to the Group at a price which shall be determined
on arm’s length negotiations based on the prevailing market prices for the
supply of similar Products. The parties agreed that each purchase order
(“Order”) placed by the Group with DEIL Group for the purchase of the
Products shall constitute a separate legally binding contract between
DEIL Group and the Group upon acceptance by DEIL Group. The terms
and conditions of the Master Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be
incorporated into each Order and form part thereof. The parties further
agreed that prevailing market price of Products shall be (i) the lower
of the quoted prices for such Products of comparable quality ordered
in similar quantities obtained by the Group from no less than two
independent third parties; or (ii) in the event that the Group is not able
to obtain at least two quotes from independent third parties, determined
on terms no less favourable than terms available to independent third
parties for the purchase of such Products of comparable quality in similar
quantities from DEIL Group.

For each of the financial years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022, it is estimated that the maximum purchase price payable by
our Group to DEIL Group in respect of the purchase of the Products
shall not exceed HK$4.0 million, HK$4.0 million and HK$4.0 million,
respectively (the “Annual Caps”).

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the purpose of Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules, given that the
applicable percentage ratio (other than the profits ratio) of the
transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement are
more than 0.1% but less than 5% and the proposed Annual Caps are
more than HK$3 million but less than HK$10 million, the transactions
contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement constitute non-
fully exempt continuing connected transactions which are exempt from
the circular and independent shareholders” approval requirements but
subject to reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Stock Exchange has granted to the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with the announcement requirements of the Listing Rules
in respect of the non-fully exempt continuing connected transactions,
subject to the following conditions:

(i) the sponsor involved in the Global Offering and the Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, confirming that
in their views that (a) the continuing connected transactions have
been and will be entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the Group’s business, are on normal commercial terms or better
that are fair and reasonable in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole; and (b) the proposed annual caps for the
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(i) apart from the announcement requirement of which waiver has been
sought, the Company will comply with the relevant requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, all Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are of the view that the aforementioned
continuing connected transactions, which had been and will be entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business and on
normal commercial terms or better, are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. They are
also of the view that the proposed Annual Caps for the aforementioned
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group purchased the
Products from DEIL Group in an amount of HK$1.7 million. Details
of the transactions with DEIL Group are set out in note 30(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
annual report and note 30(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
other related party transactions did not constitute connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s businesses to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or
any of its holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2019.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty or
supposed duty in his/her respective offices or trusts.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. As
at the date of this report, the permitted indemnity provision is currently
in force for the benefit of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the Listing Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(1) Long position in the Shares

AR DT RER
BHOBEDE

Approximate

ZRERHE percentage of
EEpE 51/ REnitE Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary Shares  in the Company
REEERE HAEHLEE S

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond

Ffi5E : 240,000,000 A% A% 7 A Smart Union Global
Group Limited ([ Smart Union | ) & % &
EEC 0 M Smart Union B9 & 3 2 217 I 15
MABESLREEZEHE © 1,020,000,000
f% B% 19 LA Smartview Investments Limited
(['Smartview]) B)ZFE 5L + M Smartview )
50%B BTN BRZBELEHES - RIFE
FREEED - KEB S ERR BF Smart
Union K& Smartview$5 5 B 2 50k (0 F # B #

pas

fm °

Interest in controlled corporations

1,260,000,000 63.0%

(BF5E)
(Note)

Note: 240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”), all the issued shares of which
are wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond. 1,020,000,000
of the Shares are registered in the name of Smartview Investments
Limited (“Smartview”), 50% of the issued shares of which are owned
by Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond. Under the SFO, Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Smart
Union and Smartview.
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(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

IEAR T L M R
NN BED L
Approximate
percentage of

HEEE B E shareholding
Name of 50 EEME g 4= interest in
EEnA associated Capacity/Nature RERER Number the associated
Name of Director corporation of interest Class of interest  of share(s) corporation
KEEBEE Smartview BEHEAA B
Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond  Smartview Beneficial owner Ordinary 1 50.0%
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors, as at the Listing Date, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had interests in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FERRESE

Name of substantial Shareholder

Long position in the Shares

5 HEEME

Capacity/Nature of interest

BEBRR#E
Number of
ordinary Shares

EADERAEN

BYEI
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

Smartview
Smartview

Smart Union
Smart Union

Grandview Group Holdings Limited
(I Grandview )

Grandview Group Holdings Limited
(“Grandview”)

REELLE
Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson

EEELLT

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina

RBEL L
Ms. Ng Ching Annetta

FHE WA
Mr. Hui Wai Lun

#|EE 204
Ms. Choi Shun Hi

B
Beneficial interest

B
Beneficial interest

2
S

Beneficial interest

XEsAEES
Interest in controlled corporations

[T e

Interest of spouse

[ e

Interest of spouse

BExfEm
Beneficial interest

[ e

Interest of spouse

1,020,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

1,260,000,000
(BET)
(Note 1)

1,260,000,000
(FF5E2)
(Note 2)

1,260,000,000
(FF5E3)
(Note 3)

120,000,000

120,000,000
(PI5E4)
(Note 4)
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51.0%

12.0%

12.0%

63.0%

63.0%

63.0%

6.0%

6.0%
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Notes:

240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Grandview, the
entire share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong
Wilson (the younger brother of Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond). 1,020,000,000
of the Shares are registered in the name of Smartview, 50% of the share
capital of which is owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Under the SFO,
Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Grandview and Smartview.

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond.
Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

Ms. Ng Ching Annetta is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Ms. Ng
Ching Annetta is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Choi Shun Hi is the spouse of Mr. Hui Wai Lun. Ms. Choi Shun Hi is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Hui Wai
Lun is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, no person (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had interests in 5%
or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the then Shareholders
passed on 10 December 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). No share option
has been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since
the Adoption Date and up to the date of this report.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b)
below) who have contributed and will contribute to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

(b) Participants
The “Eligible Participants” are:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

BERBERARAR
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(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of our Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group, the assessment
criteria of which are:

e contribution to the development and performance of the
Group;

e quality of work performed for the Group;

e initiative and commitment in performing his/her duties; and

e length of service or contribution to the Group.

(c) Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
200,000,000 Shares (the “Limit”) (representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report). The
Board may renew the Limit subject to approval of the Shareholders
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules and
the Share Option Scheme but the Limit must not exceed 30% of the
issued Shares from time to time.

(d) Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options and Shares which were the
subject of options which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company but subsequently canceled) under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% of the issued shares of the Company should be
subject to approval of the Shareholders and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme.
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(h)

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which
must be achieved before the option can be exercised, except that
no option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the
payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$1.0 as consideration for the
grant of an option must be paid by the grantee to the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date, as defined in the Share Option
Scheme, which is a date not later than 30 days after the date of
grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities (“Business Day”);

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business
Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
Life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of

ten years commencing from 10 January 2020 up to and including 9
January 2030.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

EFERERERA
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in the consolidated financial
statements, no controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has
any material contract (including material contract for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries) with the Company or
its subsidiaries during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year ended 31 December
2019 attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

- the largest customer: 27.9% of the Group’s total sales
- five largest customers combined: 69.0% of the Group’s total sales

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 11.1% of the Group’s total purchases
— five largest suppliers combined: 25.9% of the Group’s total
purchases

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (who to
the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in the above major
customers and suppliers.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 8(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors,
confirming that other than the business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors was considered to have any interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company
and/or the Group.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (chairperson of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 10 January 2020
and there has been no change in auditor since then. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2020 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2020 AGM.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group
throughout the year.

By Order of the Board

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

BEARERERAT
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has adopted a set of policies and procedures based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and exercise
proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the Company.

As the Company has not yet listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2019, the requirements
under the CG code or the continuing obligations of a listed issuer
pursuant to the Listing Rules were not applicable to the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the period from the date of
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board on 10 January 2020
to the date of this report, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company has also put in place certain recommended best practices
as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.

Board Composition
The composition of the Board is as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 January 2019)

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 January 2019)

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)
(appointed on 19 March 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (appointed on 10 December 2019)
Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (appointed on 10 December 2019)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 10 December 2019)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 23 of this
annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board held two meetings.
A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board

meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
below:

EEpE HERER
Name of Directors Attendance
RKEERE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond 2/2
BERE A Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley 2/2
BREBREE Mr. Chan Chi Ming 1/1
BB Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 1/1
FERELE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 1/1
AIfEEE R E Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 1/1
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
Chu Wai Hang Raymond and Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.

Independent non-executive Directors

Since the Listing Date, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting whereas any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond, Mr.
Tsang Ming Chit Stanley and Mr. Chan Chi Ming, has entered into
a director service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. Either party may at any time
terminate the director service agreement by giving to the other party
three months’ written notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Ling Imma Kit
Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the Group’s
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control; to
approve the strategic plans; and to appoint directors of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment and any necessary briefing
and professional development to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group, and is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Group’s
business and governance policies.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company organised
training sessions conducted by qualified professionals and legal advisers
for all Directors on pre-initial public offering and laws and regulations
(including the Listing Rules).

The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been provided to the Company and are summarised as
follows:

b
mr
E=x Type of
Directors Training Net
HITES Executive Directors
REBEEE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond A
BERE A Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley A
PR E Mr. Chan Chi Ming A
BYFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
BRI Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum A
FEREE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren A
AITERRESEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting A
BEE - Note:
b=k bl Type of training

A Z2INEDIRRIE - BREETRMNE®R - g -
RS =

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,
conferences and workshops
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairperson and members of each Board committee is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren
and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum is the chairperson of
the Audit Committee. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules and none of the
committee members is a former partner of or has any financial interest in
the Company’s existing external auditor within two years before his/her
appointment as a member of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit, relationship
with the external auditor, and arrangements to enable the employees
of the Company and those who have dealings with the Company to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties (including
financial reporting and internal control) in the Company.

As the Company was listed on 10 January 2020, no Audit Committee
meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Szeto Yuk Ting, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Tsang Ming Chit
Stanley, executive Director. Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

As the Company was listed on 10 January 2020, no Remuneration

Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the senior
management by band is set out below:

AE
HENEE Number of
Remuneration band persons
1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
1,500,0017& 7T 22,000,000/5 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 6

HZE2019F12 A31 B It FERZEENFHNE
BEHR G A P FIRERM 3T -

REEZES

REZEShIAKEANX - BB IERTE
EFEMRELE  BROL LT RAIERELREN
FRPITESEREBELRLE - FERELERREE
BexE-

REAZESEVRESERCXEATAMEE
FAEEE - RAZEENIERABRRRNE
EERE - REMAK - FERMGIERS M
REEFWMEBRERF  IEENRE EFZ
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Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Lee Wa Lun Warren, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond,
executive Director. Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Company’s Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

As the Company was listed on 10 January 2020, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to talent,
skills, professional experience, independence and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for appointment as Directors will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to talent, skills,
professional experience, independence and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Nomination Committee
considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition can be summarised
by the following main diversity perspectives:

EEAH
Number of
Directors
ezl Gender
z Female
ES Male 5
Eik3 Ethnicity
H Chinese 5
JIEWN Canadian
FilR Age
51%2605% 51-60 3
61E705% 61-70 3
PR % F PR Length of Service
1Z234F 1-3 years 6
REBE Nomination Policy
EERCMREEESRZRAMESZHENKLZEZ  The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
ERRE MIER - and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.
ZF’RETET%ZME%BZ% CEHREAEEHIEEKL  The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
ZEESENEEFELRE - WHFEIRESE  selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment

E./J%—J@E/\L" AIEXREEERNER - &
B R BRI T

of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

BFERERBRAR
20194 3R 51



ERERBES
Corporate Governance Report

RAHNRIABTEEZEEAZABENEZE
Bz BREETERATEIE

o HANREBERBHISGE - ABMER

o BMEERARARNEFER REFEER
P B BITRE M iF L 2 AR AR R EGE

o ARBEBFEZILIERRMEEZMESE
BEBIRVUR - Fi& - UEEHBEE
RUREEER

o EHRAIERNEZEIIIFNTERNE
AvA C3 4

o ARTMEBRAKAEHFR -

RABRNHARNBRASG LAENZEHE
EURBEEENEF - R LW ABEEARR
EHHLLEE  EFERARBEZE) -

RAZBEHNEE KRR BRRAERE
BRI - RRREENHELBFRIEFS
MRS MR R AR (BIEEE - B A& )
AREEEZT  BREEBAILAAAT
CEBRERMNER K KREEHZE
TEEY -

HRARTREE2019F12 A31BIEFEEHE
RERLET » EOEERTRISFRIGNED.3.1
IGFTERET TEAR - A ETHER  EFe
BB ARAMPEERREREN EFK
BREEEMNEINSEEERR AQRE
TFEEREERTHRBEERER - ZEST
BIERIERARARARINGEERTRERE
MR EEARENEE - ARFDEMR
BBEZEPEERICREEFOTFTM - BEhE
Ee RS REEERIFHETRSHAREENY
TEERABREYNEELZESLZIREHEET -

52

Annual Report 2019

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

e Skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the operations of the
Company;

e Commitment in respect of available time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;

*  Various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

¢ Independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

e Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
report, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will also review at least annually the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and diversity
of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

As the Company has not yet listed on the Main Board during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the requirements set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code were not applicable. Since the Listing Date, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. A manual setting
out various corporate governance policies and procedures has been
adopted by the Company, which applies to assist the Board and the top
management to better perform their corporate governance duties to the
Group and delegate the responsibilities to the Board committees.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company'’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including sales and
receivables, procurements and payments, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems include
a defined management structure with limits of authority. Appropriate
policies and control procedures have been designed, implemented
and reviewed to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal; established system, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks that may impact the
Company’s performance are appropriately identified and managed. Such
procedures are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assess the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress, and report to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems. Any significant
internal audit issues identified and associated remedial actions are
followed up for proper implementation, and the progress is reported to
the Audit Committee periodically.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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During the year under review, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant, BT Corporate Governance Limited, to conduct a
review on the internal control system of the Group. The annual internal
control review of the Group covered major activities and material
controls (including operational, financial and compliance) of the Group’s
business. A report on the result of assessment and recommendations was
provided by the external independent consultant to the Audit Committee.
The Group took measures to implement the recommendations made by
the external independent consultant on the internal control system.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2019, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

The Company has adopted a Whistle-blowing Policy to facilitate
employees of the Group to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in the practices and procedures, including financial
reporting, internal control and other matters, in their workplace.
It enables employees to report matters that may constitute (i) non-
compliance to laws or regulations; (ii) malpractice, impropriety or fraud
relating to internal controls, accounting, auditing and financial matters;
(iii) endangerment of the health and safety of an individual; (iv) damage
caused to the environment; (v) improper conduct or unethical behaviour
likely to prejudice the standing of the Company; and (vi) deliberate
concealment of any of the above.

The Company has developed its Inside Information Policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, officers and relevant employees of the
Group in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. The Inside Information Policy
ensures that potentially price sensitive or inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board
to decide the need for timely disclosure in order to ensure compliance
with Part XIVA of the SFO.
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The Company has also adopted a Code of Business Conduct Policy to
ensure that the Group conducts its business activities and transactions
with honesty and integrity, and in accordance with moral, ethical and
legal standards of the countries in which the Group conducts its business.
This policy applies to the Company’s business worldwide and to all
employees of the Group (unless the subsidiary(ies) of the Company has/
(have) its/(their) own code of business conduct) and covers the following
aspects:

Obligations towards the Group

e Personal conduct

e Employment practices

e Relations with customers

e Relations with suppliers and contractors
e Responsibilities to shareholders

e Responsibilities to the community

*  Monitoring of compliance and means of enforcement

Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling Shareholders, namely Smartview, Smart Union,
Grandview, Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong
Wilson, has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company on 20 December 2019 (the “Deed”), details of which have
been set out in the Prospectus.

The Company has received written declaration from each controlling
Shareholder in respect of his/its and/or his/its close associates’
compliance with the terms of the Deed during the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the compliance with the Deed and enforcement of
the terms of the Deed by the controlling Shareholders and confirmed that
the controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed during
the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

EFERZRERAT
201947k

55



ERERBES
Corporate Governance Report

ESHRMBHRRNEM

EEHREERARERBEARTNEE2019F
12 A31 B L FE MRS MIEHRE

EEHTABE AT EH AR REEEHE
LS REAERMNEBELBEABENERT
WERZE -

AR BVBIAZBED G E AR A B ISR ANER
EEENERENF0E67 BHBIZEANR

=3

EFEQEENZEEINERBEIMNEE &
£ BHESKBIEEE LHED L -

R ETEN &

AN B FEINE A% BR AT 2R Rl ok B 5T AT SRS
REZE2019F12 A31 B I F SR MAZE R IE
ZHRE A E OB S ST

PR35 385

Service Category

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 60 to 67.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Bt ENER
Fees Paid/
Payable

ZH R Audit Services 1,750,000/ 7T
HK$ 1,750,000

IZBARTE Non-audit Services
— A RN AR — Tax compliance and advisory services 370,000/ 7T
HK$370,000
2,120,000/ 7T
HK$2,120,000

NEME COMPANY SECRETARY

BARGEE FBEREBEERSIEH
H2019F3 11 BRREZEAERARZARM
E -FUHHBERER  HL2RAFRIEEK
BREIRE & -
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Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit, vice president of finance and management
information system, has been appointed as the Company’s company
secretary with effect from 11 March 2019. Please refer to the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for his
biographical information.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Company’s company secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/
herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Any Shareholder who wishes to put forward proposals at a general
meeting of the Company shall submit such proposals to the Board in
writing for the Board’s consideration either via mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong or via email not less than 15
business days prior to the date of the general meeting. The mail address
and email address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details”
below.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders shall direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited and the contact details are
set out as follows:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 2810 8185

For enquiries about corporate governance or other matters to be brought
to the attention of the Board, Shareholders shall send their written
enquiries to the Company either via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or via email. The mail address and email
address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details” below.

Contact Details

Shareholders can send their proposals and enquiries as mentioned above
to the Company as follows:

Address: Units 3203-3207, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2505 1283

Email: ir@wiseally.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company will normally not deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.wiseally.com.hk where up-to-date information and updates on
the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

The Company has adopted an amended and restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association by a special resolution passed on 10 December
2019, with the amended and restated Memorandum of Association taking
effect from 10 December 2019 and the amended and restated Articles
of Association taking effect from the Listing Date. An up-to-date version
of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to the Shareholders’ approval. The Board currently intends to recommend
dividend no less than 30% of the net profit available for distribution to
the Shareholders beginning from the financial year ending 31 December
2020.
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To the Shareholders of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wise Ally International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 68 to 152, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

NEG A ERERNBIRAEEMEIE - &2 were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

=R RAERMPETERRGAMBHRREEE  statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

ERBETRIEN - TS ELEIEIRM  context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

FHENER and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

pr=

RRETEE
Key Audit Matter

BMERAPERIMBEREETEB I EMERE  The key audit matter identified in our audit is relating to revenue
EEmbmaR recognition for the sales of goods:

EPNESTNAEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FERIHE B anilkat
Revenue recognition for the sales of goods

BRRR AV IERRMTE2.21 K5 °
Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BE2019F12A31HIEFE - REHEEmKE
& ##7980,844,000/8 TN EREMRE 2 H K
KR -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue
from sales of goods amounting to approximately
HKD980,844,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

e M ENEmiEFEERERRNE—E
Fiy ] R R M 2

Revenue from sales of goods transferred at a point
in time is recognised when control of goods has
transferred.
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B ERHE SRR ERITHEEF B4
Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition for the
sales of goods included:

o IPIEEER - ARG NFERA RS S miam B s Es
e We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
respect of revenue recognition for the sales of goods;

o HAIUHELTABHETFNEESY LB BHERER
Zihi4E 2z By R R MR IHE R B B 18I (I F ) - AR
BERENRGEABRREENARITETERMRE

e We reviewed, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with
customers and identified the terms and conditions relating
to the timing of transfer of control of goods, along with other
customary business practices, if any, to assess if the Group’s
revenue recognition policies were in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o HPIAHETT S FARRNKRER HEIMN M - BFHH
& HREERRRIFE S OMRRETTILR - EMEBETHE
Eamr s B RIBER A WS HERBOR T AR &

e We compared, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recognised during the year with delivery documents,
customers’ acknowledgement of sales, underlying sales
invoices and sales contracts to determine whether revenue
from the sales of goods had been recognised in accordance
with the Group's revenue recognition policies; and
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
revenue transaction occurred. Hence significant
audit resources were allocated to audit this area.
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e We tested, on a sample basis, revenue transactions from the
sales of goods recognised before and after the financial year-
end to delivery documents, customers’ acknowledgement
of sales and underlying sales invoices to determine whether
revenue from the sales of goods had been recognised in the

appropriate financial period.

ER EMAHTHER  BRMRAHEERNREERARRER
B

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that
the recognition of revenue from the sales of goods was supported
by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BB S SMEREAIER AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
BEE(E) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

HEAB I A RENETEEASE AR  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

ERSZ 8K o auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.
BERKESHAERA PricewaterhouseCoopers
BEEETED Certified Public Accountants

& - 202063 H278 Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BZE20195F12A31HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
iE=s THET FET
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
g Revenue 5 980,844 1,257,295
HERA Cost of sales 6 (754,653) (961,658)
EF Gross profit 226,191 295,637
HAb)FEE Other losses, net 7 (1,769) (3,145)
EHaug A Other income 7 6,850 _
HE My ERY Selling and distribution expenses 6 (59,951) (74,083)
TR Administrative expenses 6 (108,068) (111,025)
&@m%  Operating profit 63,253 107,384
BEWA Finance income 9 69 3,980
BB RN Finance costs 9 (19,362) (15,205)
FBERA . Financecostsmet ... A (19,293 __...... (11,225)
MRS AR R Profit before income tax 43,960 96,159
PSR Income tax expense 10 (10,570) (19,141)
/N Profit for the year attributable to equity
. REREABEFREA  holders of the Company Leysly 77,018
Htt2EER : Other comprehensive losses:
BZA B 7R Item that may be subsequently reclassified to
iy 0 )= profit or loss
BEmE = Currency translation differences (1,982) (5,852)
BETEETHEE Item that will not be subsequently reclassified
bistnd:0 )= to profit or loss
= EARR %% Actuarial gain on long service payment
EEtEIRBE scheme 30 20
FRHEM Total other comprehensive losses
xmpees . fortheyear o Q95D (5,832)
VYN Total comprehensive income for
EEEE ARG the year attributable to equity holders
FRZEWREE of the Company 31,438 71,186
AT Earnings per share attributable to
REFEAEESKRER  equity holders of the Company
R #5E (B Basic and diluted (HK cents) 11 2.2 5.1

FiiiREa 2EN SR EEBEM M E— 3  The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

g © read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

68 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mAa BRI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019912 A31H
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Bt e FExT FET
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y - RS MRE Properties, plant and equipment 12 103,909 127,006
B EE Intangible assets 13 3,438 1,928
Re RIaFRIEA Deposits and prepayments 15 4,669 2,375
B IBEEE Deferred tax assets 20 5,078 6,010
117,094 137,319
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 16 126,878 222,881
B S rEIGE Trade receivables 18 203,375 255,974
TANFIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
E At FEYRIE other receivables 15 12,790 24,825
e BAR A BRI Amounts due from related companies 30 2,932 -
RIS Amount due from the then fellow
EEAL )N SE subsidiary 30 = 2,506
JEUE B Amount due from the then immediate
BEERARIFIEA holding company 30 = 243,961
EHEIRIRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 17 10,000 10,000
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17 138,623 46,171
494,598 806,318
HMEE Total assets 611,692 943,637
R EQUITY
AAREEHFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
PEih Rz of the Company
A% A Share capital 26 10 _
s Reserves 52,145 124,717
R Total equity 52,155 124,717
B ERRARAT
201945 69



mEMBERR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019512 A31R
As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
liE=s THERT FHET
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
&fE LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
REIRB T2 Long service payment scheme 30 60
RITER Bank borrowings 25 45,000 -
BRI B Deferred government grants 23 428 -
HEaE Lease liabilities 19 34,737 48,714
80,195 48,774
RBEE Current liabilities
B S IR Trade payables 21 113,364 198,799
Hf e B R ESFER  Other payables and accruals 23 87,708 104,926
IEFETR AT 15 B Deferred government grants 23 1,149 -
HEaE Lease liabilities 19 13,214 11,935
JES =K Bills payables 22 30,399 49,858
IRITIEX Bank borrowings 25 221,593 396,373
FEfTE BRI ZMBATIZIE  Amounts due to the then fellow subsidiaries 30 = 1,809
BIEAFTIS R B fE Current income tax liabilities 11,915 6,446
479,342 770,146
HBEE Total liabilities 559,537 818,920
EEREEARE Total equity and liabilities 611,692 943,637
LR A SRR R IEEEEM A — B3 The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
& e conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FBEIEFEMNGREMBERERNEEETS
202053 A27BHLERKRERE ¢

behalf:

BT KEE
EF EF
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Director

TSANG MING CHIT STANLEY

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 152 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its

CHU WAI HANG RAYMOND

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BZE2019F12A31H IEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

KRR ALY
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RA  EERE  HitRE  EXRE  Brks i
Share  Statutory Other  Exchange Retained Total

capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
TR TR TR TR TR TR
HKD’000  HKD’000  HKD’000  HKD’000  HKD’000  HKD’000

(FHE @) (&£ (c))
(Note (a)) (Note (c))
_B2019F1A1R B4 Balanceal 1 Janvary 2019 2 @ GERY Whm g
2EWE Comprehensive income
FREH Profit for the year = = = = 33,390 33,390
Hitt2E W/ (B18) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
A B Item that may be subsequently
FEmHEA reclassified to profit or loss
EEnEER Currency translation differences = = = (1,982) = (1,982)
ARTEEH T ltem that will not be subsequently
EEmrEA reclassified to profit or loss
RERB 2 E Actuarial gain on long service
BRI payment scheme = - 30 - - 30
2EkE/ (B8) Total comprehensive
k) income/(loss) - - 30 (1,982) 33,390 31,438
HERHHAETH  Transactions with
x5 equity holders
REEA Issuance of ordinary shares
FILAK pursuant to the reorganisation
(FfzE1.2) (Note 1.2) 10 - 10) - _ _
B (fsxb) Appropriation (Note b) = 1,376 = = (1,376) =
B8 (Fi3E24) Dividend (Note 24) = = = - (104,0000 (104,000
REREAAET Total transactions
MRBEH with equity holders 10 1,376 (10) - (105,376) (104,000
R2019F12A31H Balance at 31 December
e 2019 10 6,205 62 (8,908) 54,786 52,155
BFBRERBR AR
sz 9;%% 71



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZ=2019F12A31 A LLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

UINGL: S e 2PN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BA AwwE HpREE EXEE Bl BiEn
Share  Statutory Other  Exchange Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD’000  HKD'000

(PEE(@) (M)
(Note (a)) (Note (c))

201851114 % Balance at 1 January 2018 - 2,968 22 (1,074) 51,615 53,531
2EWE Comprehensive income
FRER Profit for the year - - - - 77,018 77,018
Hit2E W/ (B18) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
AR EH A Item that may be subsequently

FRBHER reclassified to profit or loss
BB ER Currency translation differences - - - (5,852) - (5,852)
ARTEEH 75 ltem that will not be subsequently

EEmrEA reclassified to profit or loss
R 23 Actuarial gain on long service

HREENE payment scheme - - 20 - - 20
2EkE/ (B8) Total comprehensive

k] income/(loss) - - 20 (5,852) 77,018 71,186
BERSBAETN  Transaction with

x5 equity holders
B (Pstb) Appropriation (Note b) - 1,861 - - (1,861) -
RERRAAET Total transaction

MR B A with equity holders - 1,861 - - (1,861) -
R20185128318 Balance at 31 December

Hitt 2018 - 4,629 42 (6,926) 126,772 124,717

79 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BZE2019512831RLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

M

(a)

AARIF2019F1 A15 B - BEHR2019
F12A13B5%K - A MEMEMS - K2018
F12 A3 BNGAERAEEAEE A RIBREAN R
EBBRFAK AN ERH A TR o

REARKNMBE(HED)ERERRE - & BEEM
REREAERTE AMELENDIKAT - AstBHE
& BREM MR 2MAOMEBIRE T (B
EFENRFERR) BROE T AT R E R
- FTEAERBHEMIERNMRT - PEIAF
R IkEE FTEIR A BRZEMET - RERA DR
BREEERM0%NEREETEHREE - B
BETE BHFEEEL M E AN 50%E - REAE
P8R XFRHREGERNBHEAREE &
RARZEFIBMARER © I - AR AREE
FERER  E—TEBREBRENENBERSRE
=

HitREEASERETBREAENRIRE S
BT RIEMEE W - KEREBERIHEHEE -
ARAEERN R RNA AR T RBAREN
HE-

bl kR A 2R B Bh 5% R EELBE P AO B RE — GFBD

2
=

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 15 January 2019 and the Reorganisation
was completed on 13 December 2019. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the consolidated capital as at 31 December 2018
primarily represented the aggregate amounts of share capital of the
companies now comprising the Group after elimination of the inter-company
investment costs.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations require
companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the profit after income tax (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. A PRC company is required to
appropriate an amount of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of its post-tax profits
of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when
the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the company, to expand the company’s operations, or to increase
the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make further
contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Other reserve represented the accumulated actuarial gains on the Group’s
long service payment scheme for its Hong Kong employees and the excess
of the combined share capital of the companies comprising the Group, after
considering the intra-group elimination, over the consideration given in
relation to the Reorganisation.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

EFERERERAT
201943k
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mERETRE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BZE20195F12A31HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Bt THET THTT
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
EEBELMNBESRE  Cash flows from operating activities
f?&%@iﬁ’\ﬁﬁj’z Cash generated from operations 27a 141,606 28,103
SN Income tax paid 4,274) (28,656)
KESEENETS,(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

FHRE operating activities 137,332 (553)
REZHELEMNBESHRE  Cash flows from investing activities
BEWE  BE MRS Purchase of properties, plant and equipment (16,278) (22,560)
HEWE  BEKLERER  Proceeds from disposal of properties,

FT{S3KIR plant and equipment 27b 253 288
EEmAE Purchase of intangible assets (3,124) (564)
o E R A A Repayment from/(advance to) the then

B (BHTER immediate holding company

BEERAT) 139,601 (51,395)
BUF B Interest received 429 3,620
FLRE B R B Receipt of government grants for purchase

FF P 78 W B i B of equipment and software licenses 774 -
EEBAE(FTR) Net cash generated from/(used in)

FRE investing activities 121,655 (70,611)
BMETFEHELNBESHRE  Cash flows from financing activities
SRITIEFRPNEFRIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 27¢ 896,933 870,645
BEIFTTER Repayments of bank borrowings 27¢ (1,026,713) (792,866)
XNHEAR Payment of principal element

HASE S of lease liabilities 27¢ (11,918) (7,459)
B E Dividend paid 27¢ - (30,000)
BAF & Interest paid (19,936) (17,270)
St EmHR Payment of listing expenses (4,968) (2,058)
MEERD Net cash (used in)/generated from

(FTA)/ B3 38R & financing activities (166,602) 20,992
BHERRESEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

®gm,/ (R ) #E cash equivalents 92,385 (50,172)
FURE R Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

BLELEY of the year 46,171 94,425
BE¥mEEE Currency translation differences 67 1,918
FRAG KREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17 138,623 46,171

tRFEREeREREEBEMAME—FB  The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
i e conjunction with the accompanying notes.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO TH

SEHMBRERMNE
E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1T GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

—REMREA

1.1 General information

1.1 —RER

RARB—RIRIBHSEEEHIF22
ERANVE(1961 FEMI =) (KERE R
&3] 2019F 1 A15AEREH ST
MK B BR AT o HixMie
= B Hb 31k A 4th Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, P.O. Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands °

ARB(B—REEERAR) REMH
BLR([AEE)T2NREETER
MELENHE ([ EWERK]) - HKIE
BERAARBESLRE(RERELE])
kRZERE(TRBELE]) (R
MEZRBRR])  ®FBRERRFEMK
MAR—EEGIBERT -

ARABRMDR2020F1 A10BEFR A
BERPBRARER LT °

BRBHRAIN  GREPBHRRATE
([ FRTDBEMZS -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 January 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of electronic products (the “Listing
Business”). The ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Chu
Wai Cheong Wilson (“Mr. Wilson Chu”) and Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Chu”) (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) who have been controlling the group companies
since their incorporation.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 10 January 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

BEBEFIERER AR
2019445 75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

76

—REMREAA)

1284

ERTXiEA(TEAR - £
MEBHEFERAERAR(EEE
FREAMBRRR=HENEXA
RAml([RERIER ) (G BFEE
B)&RE  MRARBERBRRESR
mEER(FR)BRAR([REE
& 1) AR -

REGERARABEE([BERDMER
EDRARRBNRBEBER S
BRARERLED(TEW]) - AEE
ETER  BEPEESRIANTR

(@ #2019 %1 A 108 - Brilliant
Holdings Investment Group
Limited ( [ Brilliant Holdings | ) 1%
BEERAHE (| RBELH
B1)EPIEMKZBERAT -
b 7 15 7 % 1T &% % 50,000 B =
BmEE1.005% T ([R5 ]) MK
3 o FEFEMAIZI& - —BXBrilliant
Holdings # A {7 ¥ T & Ac 3 K 3%
TTREFBLARIISEE -

(b) 720194 1 A 108 & 20194 1
A 15 B * Smart Union Global
Group Limited ([ Smart Union])
Grandview Group Holdings Limited
([ Grandview |) 7 IR 1% % B &
ZRESEDIGEMA L - W
175 % 50,0008 F IR E1E1.00
ELHRG o EAMKE - £
MARE BIREERE KRBT
PREE1.00E TR RN FTREE
S RRBBE L AW AR A5
2o

() M2019% 1 H10H - Smartview
Investments Limited ([ Smartview |)
BIFRBE LS A EFMAT
BERAR  WEREZRITRS
50,000 % & % T 1B 1.00 3 7T ) iR
7o EeEftakirig - B RE
1T SmartviewiZ E{E ABRSI &
BME2RG  ARKRBEREAR
KREBEISED BIIEEIT ARG -

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

Immediately prior to the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
as described below, the Listing Business was carried out by
Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“HK Wise Ally”) and its subsidiary,
Dongguan Wise Ally Industrial Co., Ltd* (“DG Wise Ally”)
(together, the “Wise Ally Group”), which were collectively
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders through Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited (“Defond HK”).

In preparation for the initial public offering (“IPO”) and listing
(the “Listing”) of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
underwent the Reorganisation which principally involved the
following steps:

(@ On 10 January 2019, Brilliant Holdings Investment Group
Limited (“Brilliant Holdings”) was incorporated under
the laws of the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited
liability and was authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000
shares of a par value of United States dollar (“USD”) 1.00
each. Upon incorporation, one share of Brilliant Holdings
was allotted and issued at par and credited as fully paid to
Defond HK.

(b) On 10 January 2019 and 15 January 2019, Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”) and Grandview
Group Holdings Limited (“Grandview”) were respectively
incorporated under the laws of BVI and were authorised
to issue a maximum number of 50,000 shares of USD1.00
each. Upon incorporation, one share of USD1.00 was
allotted and issued at par by the each of the aforesaid
companies and credited as fully paid to Mr. Raymond Chu
and Mr. Wilson Chu respectively.

(c) On 10 January 2019, Smartview Investments Limited
(“Smartview”) was incorporated under the laws of the
BVI with limited liability and was authorised to issue a
maximum of 50,000 shares of a par value of USD1.00 each.
Upon incorporation, two shares of Smartview were allotted
and issued at par and credited as fully paid, of which one
share was issued to Mr. Raymond Chu and one share was
issued to Mr. Wilson Chu respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 —REMKREAGE)

1254 (E)

(d)

2019518158 » ARARIRHE
EHEFMAKL - VT EEBRA
/38,000,000 & & f% E {B0.01 7%
TR D o AL E - AR
A — X EEO0.01 B T (D 31T
MEE TYIBRERE - KRR
B REARNZEABEEET

Smartview °

2019F1 A31H » 6798% * 160
B R160 AR A IR D R EE
7 Bl B 3 & 347 T Smartview -
Smart Union X Grandview If A
RINBHTE  MARFHE
TRAAA103 T - 5 41,000
f& SR E0.01 B TR -
It * Smartview * Smart Union &
Grandview? BB AR 7]68%
16% R 16%%HE °

7 2019 4 3 A 19 B - Brilliant
Holdingsla{Z 8 BB WHEEERE
FH 2 ERE - K& RBrilliant
Holdings A1 12 & & & 3% 17 [ fic 3
— R -

201912 A13H * RAR]A)E
& & %5 U8 B Brilliant Holdings &9
2ERE  REREELEESE
7~ + 7 Smartview * Smart Union
K Grandview & BER ARG E
RIEAFREA - ARF S5
A Smartview * Smart Union &
Grandview %17 & fid 25679,320%
Bt~ 159,840 A A% 17 52 159,840
ARt

EERRE - ARAKAAEE
T A ARGERAT -

1T GENERAL

INFORMATION AND

REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (continued)

(d)

On 15 January 2019, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with initial authorised share capital of
38,000,000 shares of HKDO0.01 each. Upon incorporation,
one share of the Company of HKDO0.01 each was issued and
allotted to the initial subscribing shareholder. On the same
date, the subscriber share was transferred to Smartview at
par value.

On 31 January 2019, 679 shares, 160 shares and 160
shares of the Company were allotted and issued at par
and credited as fully paid to Smartview, Smart Union, and
Grandview respectively and the issued share capital of the
Company became HKD10 divided into 1,000 shares of
HKDO.01 each. As a result, Smartview, Smart Union, and
Grandview owned 68%, 16% and 16% equity interest of
the Company respectively.

On 19 March 2019, Brilliant Holdings acquired the
entire equity interest of HK Wise Ally from Defond HK. In
consideration, Brilliant Holdings issued and allotted one
share to Defond HK.

On 13 December 2019, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest of Brilliant Holdings from Defond HK. In
consideration, as directed by Defond HK, the Company
issued and allotted 679,320 shares, 159,840 shares and
159,840 shares to Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview
respectively, in proportion to the respective then existing
shareholding of Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview in
the Company.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the companies comprising
the Group.

For identification purpose only

EFERERERAT
201943k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

—REMREAA)

1.325EE

SZRNEHESEAE  EWEBDL
VHBZBRFEEET RES
e EMEBEEVHARFFE °
RRBNEAR L8 MMEREEE
TARNEEBHNEE - EHER/L™
EBEHE - MABEGHEERITER
BRI R o F gt - HEAMMAIL
BN SR B AR S B SR AR A B 7
MR AREMEERARKRE
MEBEMRA 25 IR REERER
KEtE -

2 ERETHEHE

/8

RESEVBHREAMREANEIESRR
R T - RAAFHBAI - ZFBRRAT
2IFREFEERER -

2.1 REEE

AEBEGEVBHRRIBEETEE
fhAg((EBEFMAE ) EMNM
BEREEMHREEN(ERMBE
BEER ) REBERRIGHIFE22ER
BERTEHRME - SR M BERRIZRE
SLRRAE SR

REHAEBHBRERUDEAM
BERBEERE TEARSHE -
DERARAEFREAARE R
BB  E UBF - 35 ROR T2 I
SRR - SRR R AT B A BT
AT = BEBHERH 45 -

AEECRAEEEPERANTEY
BHRELEE 165 HE | - HAEMS
ABRERATEFEEREARAE
KBRS MERE -

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION (continued)

1.3 Basis of presentation

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the Listing
Business had been and continues to be conducted through
Wise Ally Group. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Listing
Business is transferred to and held by the Company. The
Company has not been involved in any business prior to the
Reorganisation and does not meet the definition of a business.
The Reorganisation is merely a reorganisation of the Listing
Business with no change in management of such business and
the Controlling Shareholders remain the same. Accordingly,
the Group resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as
a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of
Wise Ally Group, with the assets and liabilities of the Group
recognised and measured at the carrying amounts of the Listing
Business for all periods presented.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” using the full
retrospective approach with which the relevant accounting
policies have been consistently applied to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements throughout the years ended.



mEMBRERKE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BEASTTHEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 REEEE) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

CRGEREEAKRERANHITE
Al - REEA SR K28

New standard, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards issued but not yet adopted by the Group

R B
oAt 4t
ZERHEEX
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

2020F1 H1H
1 January 2020

BEM B HREERIFEIFR ZIER]
Amendments to HKFRS 3

EBHNTE
Definition of a Business
BAMBHMELERIFIHR - 2020F1A1H
BB ERIFEINRRES
IS IREERIE 75 2 185]
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

IEES e

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020

BBUBERELERF 105K REERHABENRRAE LR IHNEE BE

BB SEIERISE28% 2185
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BAMGHREERE175
HKFRS 17

BAGERBIRRESES
AERIE85R 2 ER]

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

201 8F A TEMEBDAER
Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018
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@,

HEFEE
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

RBREXK

Insurance Contracts
BEANEE

Definition of Material

RIERTA RSB SHER
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

To be determined

20211 A1H

1 January 2021

202051 H1H

1 January 2020

202091418
1 January 2020

Reporting

The Group will adopt the above new standard, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards as and when they become
effective. Management has performed preliminary assessment
and does not anticipate any significant impact on the Group’s
financial position and results of operations upon adopting these
standard, amendments and interpretations.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

Business combination

Except for the Reorganisation upon Listing, the Group
applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combination (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amounts of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amounts
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amounts recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amounts for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

22.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”)
who makes strategic decisions.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

24.1

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

243 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that consolidated statement of financial
positions;

e income and expenses for each income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs, net of their
residual value, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term

and useful life of 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets

System software

Acquired system software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of three years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets changes.

28.2 Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
28.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments to be measured at amortised costs.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

28.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and reward of ownership.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost are
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model. The Group
assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables from third parties and related parties, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the trade receivables from third parties
and related parties. The Group has assessed the expected credit
loss by considering historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking information.

For other receivables and amount due from the then immediate
holding company, the Group measures the impairment as either
twelve months expected credit losses or life-time expected
credit losses, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of the other receivables and amount due
from the then immediate holding company has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.

2.11Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
material, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
cash on hand.

2.14Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.15Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and bills payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
interest expense over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amounts can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax

is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@)

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(e)

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

Long service payments

The Group’s net post-employment benefit obligation
in respect of long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong upon cessation of their employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefits that the
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
cost method, discounted to its present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributed to contributions made by the
Group. The discount rate is the yield at each balance sheet
date of Hong Kong Government’s Exchange Fund Notes
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liability. The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The current service cost of the long service payment
scheme, recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income reflects the increase in the long
service payment’s obligation as a result of employee service
in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements. Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the balance of the long service payment’s obligation.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts for the sale of
goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s activity. Revenue
is shown net of returns and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customers and the payment by the customers exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending
on the relationship between the Group’s performance and
the customer’s payment. A contract asset is the Group’s right
to consideration in exchange for goods that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain
a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as
assets and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers the promised goods to the customer, the Group
presents the contract as a contract liability when the payment
is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier).
A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer the
promised goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for
the Group’s activity as described below:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods transferred at a point in time are recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the Group has
delivered the products to the customers and the customers have
accepted the products, the customers have full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.23 Leases

The Group leases various properties and plant and machinery.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
three months to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain various terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (included in
properties, plant and equipment) and the corresponding
liabilities at the date of which the respective leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at costs comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. The useful life used for the assets’ depreciation
purpose is:

Properties Over the lease term

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases for properties, plant
and machinery with a lease term of less than 12 months. Low-
value assets comprise machinery with value below HKD5,000.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the years in which the dividend is approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to expenses are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
expenses that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of properties, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amounts of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

3.1 Market risk

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD and Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, which are denominated in
these currencies.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group has not entered into any derivative instruments to hedge
its foreign exchange exposures.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if USD had strengthened/
weakened by 0.5% against HKD, with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for each year would have
changed mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of USD denominated cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables and trade and other payables.

2019 2018
FExT FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
Xt/ AT USD/HKD
BRFTSEATERIE 10, (Fi4>) Profit before income tax increase/(decrease)
— 18 900.5% — Strengthened by 0.5% 803 990
—RA0.5% — Weakened by 0.5% (803) (990)
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 0.5% against HKD, with all other variables
held constant, profit before income tax for each year would
have changed mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies, amount due from the then fellow subsidiary,
trade and other payables and amounts due to the then fellow
subsidiaries.

2019 2018
FET FHT
HKD’000 HKD’000
AR BT RMB/HKD
B ETSTADERCRA) /LN Profit before income tax (decrease)/increase
—#2HN0.5% — Strengthened by 0.5% (422) (679)
—RA0.5% — Weakened by 0.5% 422 679
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Market risk (continued)

3.1.2

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its
pledged bank deposits, cash at banks, amount due from the
then immediate holding company, and bank borrowings
with floating interest rates. Details of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, amount due
from the then immediate holding company and bank
borrowings have been disclosed in Notes 17, 30 and 25 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Other than pledged bank deposits, cash at banks, amount
due from the then immediate holding company, and bank
borrowings, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if interest rates on
pledged bank deposits, cash at banks, amount due from the
then immediate holding company, and bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all variables
held constant, profit before income tax for the years ended
would have been approximately HKD591,000 (2018:
HKD482,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on the bank borrowings netted
with interest income on the pledged bank deposits, cash at
banks, and amount due from the then immediate holding
company.

3.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from pledged bank
deposits, cash at banks, trade and other receivables, amounts

due from related companies, amount due from the then fellow

subsidiary and amount due from the then immediate holding

company. The carrying amounts of each financial asset represent

the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, HK Wise
Ally, Rayson Innovations Limited (“Rayson”) and Defond HK
(together, the “borrowers”), entered into a joint bank facility

under which the borrowers provided cross guarantees as part of

the securities.

EFERERERAT
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)

As disclosed in Note 25 (i) to

Controlling Shareholders (together, the “other securities”).

Pursuant to the aforementioned arrangement, if Rayson and
Defond HK default on the repayment of their respective
utilised loans, the bank may demand HK Wise Ally to settle the
outstanding principles of their respective utilised loans and any

interests accrued thereon.

Under such circumstances, the Group will be able to rely on
the other securities. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group's credit risk with respect to the maximum liability of the
Group that may be incurred under this guarantee, as disclosed

in Note 31d, is effectively mitigated.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the

Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and cash at banks were
deposited with high quality financial institutions. Therefore, the
Group does not expect any losses arising from non-performance

by these counterparties.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, 69% (2018: 69%) of
the Group’s revenue was derived from its top five customers.
As at 31 December 2019, 68% (2018: 67%) of the total trade

receivables were due from the Group's top five customers.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, cash at banks,
amounts due from related companies and amount due from the
then fellow subsidiary and the then immediate holding company
are limited because deposits are in banks with sound credit
ratings and management does not expect any loss from non-

performance by these related parties.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(v), other securities for this bank
facility also include certain properties owned by certain related
companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders and
the personal guarantees of unlimited amounts provided by the
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss models:

e trade receivables from third parties and related parties
from sales of goods

e other financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Future cash flows
for each group of receivables are estimated on the basis
of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the effects
of existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivable.

Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group and a failure to make contractual payments.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain customers
who did not share the same credit risk characteristics as
the rest of the debtors were in delinquency of payments
and their respective trade receivable balances amounting
to approximately HKD1,556,000 were therefore fully
impaired.

BFERERERAT
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Trade receivables without known insolvencies are
assessed on a collective basis based on shared credit risk
characteristic. Based on the Group’s assessment, expected
credit loss rate of these trade receivables is close to zero.
Therefore, the loss allowance provision for these trade
receivable balances was not material and no provision was
recognised.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at amortised cost
include other receivables and amount due from the then
immediate holding company in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The impairment loss of other financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured based on the
twelve months expected credit loss. The twelve months
expected credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected
credit loss that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within twelve months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, management
considered the credit risk of other receivables and amount
due from the then immediate holding company as low
as counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for these
other receivables and amount due from the then immediate
holding company were immaterial under 12 months
expected losses method. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these balances was close to zero and no
provision was recognised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the shorter
and longer term.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HKD138,623,000 (2018:
HKD46,171,000), that are expected to be readily available to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources including
orderly realisation of short-term financial assets, receivables
and certain assets that the Group considers appropriate.
Long term financing including long-term borrowings are also
considered by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances, committed credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total undrawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HKD239,008,000
(2018: HKD98,769,000) and the Group’s total drawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HKD266,593,000 (2018:
HKD396,373,000).

The table below analyses the non-derivative financial liabilities
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table were the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Balances within twelve months equal their
carrying balances as impact from discounting is not significant.

BEERRRERAR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is
if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.

BREREE DM 1255 st
Repayable Less than Between

on demand Tyear  1and5 years Total
TR THR TR THER
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000

R2019%12A318 At 31 December 2019
EC )RS Trade payables - 113,364 = 113,364
Hiv BB RESER Other payables and accruals = 60,622 = 60,622
HEak Lease liabilities = 16,052 38,331 54,383
NS Bills payables - 30,399 - 30,399
RITIER Bank borrowings 216,196 8,602 47,628 272,426
216,196 229,039 85,959 531,194

R2018%12A31H At 31 December 2018
BHERNTIE Trade payables - 198,799 - 198,799
Hiv BB RESER Other payables and accruals - 65,788 - 65,788
HEaE Lease liabilities - 15,556 58,880 74,436
ENESH Bills payables - 49,858 - 49,858

ERERRRMEAR Amounts due to the then fellow

HIE subsidiaries 1,809 - - 1,809
HBITER Bank borrowings 401,873 - - 401,873
403,682 330,001 58,880 792,563

TRINRARBIRTTEFIZ R AR
H#R - REBEHBERRESOIH
B RIREIREETT AT - L AT A
BRERERGFROTE -

The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the Group into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date
without taking into consideration the effect of repayment on
demand clause.

15 0R 1226 2858 “@st
Within Between Between

Tyear 1and2years 2and>5 years Total

TR TR FET FHT

HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
20195128318 At 31 December 2019

RITEH Bank borrowings 224,798 29,808 17,820 272,426
R20185 128318 At 31 December 2018

RITIER Bank borrowings 379,282 11,473 11,118 401,873

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 BIEEMERE(E)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Capital management

AEEEREANERRRERNEE
FRELENED  UARRERE
- [R) B R BE Al M 25 AR B E RO A
& THRRSRENEREBUREER

RERLFHBELRGEHE  AEENE
HABRARRIKMORE S - FER
REBEARKHEEERKET -

AEERBRBEHRE RN RET
B o A ERRITER - &R
REMBARNRT A B - R
20195 2018512 A31 BN A B EY
AR RN

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt represents bank borrowings. Total
capital represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The total debt to total capital
ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018

TERT FET

HKD’000 HKD’000

HER Total borrowings 266,593 396,373
B Total equity 52,155 124,717
BEEHRENRLE Total debt to total capital ratio 5.1 times 1 3.2 times &

BEEHEERLER2018F12 H31
HE3.2EEMNZE2019%12 A31 B H
5115 FEHNEEZEEE2019F
12 A31H It FE 2R SR A
B o

AP L
M2019F 201812 A31H » AEE

KRG B ISR R I B AT A AR
AFEMESREESTRAE -

AEEEREEMEBRAGNKREE
RERE ARSI B E A HERESE

The increase in total debt to total capital ratio from 3.2 times as
at 31 December 2018 to 5.1 times as at 31 December 2019 was
mainly due to the decrease in total equity as a result of dividend
paid for the year ended 31 December 2019.

3.5 Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have
any financial assets or financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position which were measured at fair
value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities, approximated their fair values due to their
short maturities.

BFERERERAT
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and tax expense in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
4.3 Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's historical default rates, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment of
receivables recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CODM has been identified as the CEO of the Company. The
CEO reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CEO has determined the
operating segment based on these reports.

The CEO considers the Group’s operation from a business
perspective and determines that the Group has one reportable
operating segment being manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segment based
on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the
Group’s revenues were from contracts with customers and were
recognised at a point in time. Please refer to Note 2.21 for details of
accounting policies on revenue recognition.

BFERERERAT
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5 WEkDIHER(E) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

@ REFERF (HERERMAE (@) Revenue from major customers who have
EAKEN10%H A L) e individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group

2019 2018
THET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BFA Customer A 273,967 181,753
ZF5B Customer B N/A* A3 F* 408,046
ZEC Customer C 156,327 N/A* A3 A *
ZFD Customer D 113,095 N/A* N3 A *

* MEEFREEFEYEEHAEEE *  The corresponding customers did not contribute over 10% of the

Wz #83810% © total revenue of the Group for the respective years.

(b) ZEFHEVEE DD K (b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical

location
REERMIBME (ERINUESE The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
E)EI DI determined by the delivery location, is as follows:
2019 2018
FET FAT
HKD’000 HKD’000
35 United States 565,412 800,767
[ United Kingdom 207,606 147,485
O Hong Kong 55,061 81,098
SEE France 8,557 46,564
+ PRC 24,904 51,617
HAb (M) Others (Note) 119,304 129,764
980,844 1,257,295
5T Note:
HMTZ2EBOBMNBER(MEDES - & Others mainly include (i) European countries such as Estonia, Germany,
- BB BAF & BE - R R Ireland, Italy, Netherlands, Norway, Sweden and Switzerland; and
1) RGN - BEH - X HIE - B (i) Australia, Belize, Canada, India, Japan, Mexico, New Zealand,
7N - BPRE - WA K RAE o Singapore and Taiwan.

1 1 O WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 WamkoEER(E) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(c) BMBNEESTHNIIERBIEE (c) Non-current assets by geographical location
R2019%F 2018412 A31H » AEE The total amounts of non-current assets, other than deferred
FERBEEEBORELEHAEERIN) tax assets, of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
IRA TR located in the following regions:

2019 2018
THET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
O Hong Kong 15,072 15,139
Fh PRC 96,944 114,242
112,016 129,381
6 EMEEEIDTHRAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
STAHERA - HE R A A RITH Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses
R MRS DT and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
THET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BT EM R Raw materials used 602,873 737,343
EEBMKARANEIR Employee benefit costs and manpower
PRz (F7E8) service expenses (Note 8) 195,357 254,456
EPF12) Depreciation (Note 12) 31,412 29,633
#E(FEE13) Amortisation (Note 13) 1,614 643
BRAKES - WAERBETHES  Rental expenses of short-term leases in respect
B HEENE SR of machineries, offices and staff quarters
(FfaE19¢) (Note 19¢) 925 3,244
B KR ARRMEAEY Electricity, water and utility expenses 6,885 7,820
2R (FiI5E30b) Corporate expenses (Note 30b) - 12,100
HEMSFAX Sales commission expenses 23,442 32,702
M Consumables 7,724 7,167
HiE LR Freight and custom declarations 8,947 13,177
HIERIRE Repair and maintenance 2,164 2,966
HmFiia Other taxes 6,265 4217
ZMRFSZ Travelling expenses 3,557 3,400
Bl b3 Listing expenses 17,347 9,015
HEXEH Other professional fees 1,670 1,869
WAERE Office expenses 1,408 1,261
T e Auditor’s remuneration
— ARG (TEIEETMREY) - Audit services (excluding listing expense) 1,862 246
RITFEE Bank charges 1,738 1,762
fRE Insurance 1,232 2,481
e Telecommunications 1,442 1,311
FEREER)/ BE (Reversal of)/provision for impairment of
(ff5E16) inventories (Note 16) (409) 12,292
Hith Others 5,217 7,661

HEMA - HERDHMAK  Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
TTIH A S2 4858 expenses and administrative expenses 922,672 1,146,766

BEBBRIERERAR]
- Xzow%& 111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 HtFEEREMUKA 7 OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME
(@) HfttFEE (a) Other losses, net
2019 2018
FTERT TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
HEWE - BEM Losses on disposal of properties,
RIEHEE plant and equipment (2,291) (1,987)
b 5 Was (18 Exchange gains/(losses) 522 (1,158)
(1,769) (3,145)
(b) EAbUA (b) Other income
2019 2018
FERT TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BT+ B (F95E23b) Government grants (Note 23b) 1,348 -
H (M) Other (Note) 5,502 -
6,850 -
FsE Note:
REZE2019 F12 A31HILEFE » ARE— During the year ended 31 December 2019, due to the termination
BAEPHEBBREREL  AEBEGSEHE of business relationship with a former customer, the Group received
5,502,000/ 7T TERAREREEE T@F W compensation amounting to HKD5,502,000, primarily for handling of
RERERANRAKEREEENE TER certain excess materials and the cross-border transfer of certain product
B equipment previously consigned in the Group’s premises.

1 1 2 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 EEEAMAEZIRADERKRE 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND MANPOWER

i BREEEME

SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

2019 2018
TFE T FAT
HKD’000 HKD’000
TE - FeRiEsd Wages, salaries and bonus 166,343 194,618

RIRE A — REHFETE Pension costs — defined contribution schemes
(BtsFa) (Note a) 20,002 14,115
HEi 8 TRA Other staff welfares 6,954 7,725

#BIEB BN Total employee benefit expenses

(BIEEEHN) (including directors’ remunerations) 193,299 216,458
AN EIRIRTS 7 > (H3Eb) Manpower service expenses (Note b) 2,058 37,998
195,357 254,456

B -

(@)

BARERA - RE KRGS
&E
RRBHRA — FUEH K2

AEEE ZHEEEREE 2 IRHIEAE S
F((REEE ] —EREIZEATED
FEMEED - RIFBESFE - ARER
HEBZEBWACER RBHERTRE )
Z25%F ARG EEHHR - ARERESD
S M IS AE A 1,5008 T A LR ©

=

RRP BRI REREE - RPREED
MEARAEAHEENER AR EIE
AR o B ZE2019F % 2018F12 A31H IEF
B BIREELHPEAH KEB AT TEH
& MEBARAFLHEEEEATEETES
LERIBESR - B — PR AR A S EIINY
BRARSRARBEIELERXM - ZZ5ER
EBRIRINET 818 B EMRINE B2 IRIN

EEE-

Notes:

()

Pensions costs — defined contribution plans
Hong Kong
Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ mandatory contributions were subject to a cap of HKD1,500
per month.

The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, depending on the provinces of the employees’ registered
residences and their current region of work, the subsidiary contributed
certain percentages of the basic salaries of its employees and had no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post retirement
benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

EERRZERAR AR
201947k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 EEEARIRADERERE 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND MANPOWER

X BRESHS(E)

Bt - ()

(b)

(©

114

ADERBRIEMZ

HE2019F K%2018F12 A31HILEE - A&
BEHEHRPEINIANERREEETLET
ANERRBELHE - RIBEZSTHE - 2SS
EHERBEARE TAEEETAFE XK
i AT AL A9 A 70 & R B3 40 B AR 75 1 1 B e B
i ZEMASEREREHA LI EELRE
EHA T EREE -

hERSHMAL

HE2019F12A31ALLFE AEBRER
BEHMALBEERBES(2018F « —FE
F) 0 HiNE RBAENFE31 20 HTH o &
ZE2019F12A318ILLFE - BNBHT=BA
+(2018%F : MEAT)EST -

SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Manpower service expenses

(o)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the human
resources provided were directly employed by the relevant service
organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group do not
have any employment relationship with the Group.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include 2 directors for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 1
director) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 31. The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 individuals for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 4 individuals) are as follows:

2019 2018
FET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
IE - HFekita Wages, salaries and bonus 5,554 8,053
RINES A — A E G2 Pension costs — defined contribution plans 54 72
5,608 8,125
S EELAT - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
2019 2018
< EE Emolument bands
1,500,001;%7C%2,000,000/ 7T HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 3 2
2,000,001 7T22,500,00078 7T HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 - 2
3 4

HE2019FE%2018F12 A31BHILFE » A&
EERTAESR A LR THALTIMAE
AT BN <2 1 755 0 BE X 72 i BE 7 42 [ B 1 A8 B sk 1

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 FBMEMAK

9 FINANCE COSTS, NET

2019 2018

FExT FAT

HKD’000 HKD’000

ERITIF R WA Interest income on bank deposits (69) (73)
KA SHEEERAFN Interest income from the then immediate

FEWA (KEE30) holding company (Note 30) - (3,907)

BMERA Finance income (69) (3,980)

IRITIERF B Interest expenses on bank borrowings 15,742 11,906

HEBENEMAX Interest expenses on lease liabilities

(KMzE19b) (Note 19b) 3,620 3,299

BhE AR Finance costs 19,362 15,205

FEVE AR Finance costs, net 19,293 11,225

10 FRBHBIX 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

HE2019F M2018F 12 A31BILEE -
ERENEHENBEC AT EREEFIZ

THE16.5%HR °

HZE2019F %2018F12A31BHILEE -
NEGEF BB QR BIREER R

assessable profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's
subsidiary in the PRC is subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a

25% AN EFTSEI ([ REMREH]) standard rate of 25%.
2019 2018
FTET FAET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BNHEA TSt Current income tax
— R DEMER —PRCCIT 4,201 9,276
—EBNE — Hong Kong profits tax 6,151 13,523
10,352 22,799
B FERERE Over-provision in prior year
—HBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax (623) -
BEAPRIS T 42 %R Total current income tax 9,729 22,799
ELEATER(MI5E20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) 841 (3,658)
FriSfiA X Income tax expense 10,570 19,141
EERRZERAR AR
Do 115



mEMBRERKE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FrE#iRI< () 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
REBRRFIBH AN M BIEA 5 AFE A The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
AR AN B R B A B I A An4E 55 theoretical amounts that would arise using the weighted average tax
TEMEENIZEHMESTAT rate applicable to profits of subsidiaries of the Group as follows:
2019 2018
THET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
B PSR AT Al Profit before income tax 43,960 96,159
TEAR AR E A R FA  Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to
MERGTERIIA profits of the respective subsidiaries 11,496 17,818
ITIEENBRIEZLE - Tax effect of:
BARBUA Income not subject to tax (24) (48)
AT Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 685 1,371
BT IR 2 Research and development tax credit (964) -
BEFEBEEE Over-provision in prior year (623) -
FriSiF 2 Income tax expense 10,570 19,141
MEFEAREREIEES)  TERRNE The changes in the weighted average applicable tax rate were
BREREPECEMBRCERREZR mainly due to the changes in the proportion of the taxable profit
R IB T FERBUR A L BB ATE - under Hong Kong profits tax and PRC CIT which were subject to
different applicable tax rates.
BZE2019F 12 A31 B IEFENBERET X4 The increase in effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December
SEEHARMEEN TR AT 2019 was mainly attributable to the listing expenses incurred that
FEk were not deductible for tax purpose.

1 1 6 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 BRER

BRERBMNDIREBEARRAIESFEE AR
R AR A F RE BT H BRI F 15

BEHE -

RETEZ2019F %2018 F12A318 1k
FEWEABEHTHITABRIMNEFTHEH
BF + 1,500,000,000 8% & i A% (A< 5 R B 5
33ATEA2020 F1 A10B#ETHERLE
TRBENEI 2N EBEITHRG)
WIRABE2018 F1 A1BHEBEHETT -

S B AR TR NEFSEE
BIEER20205F1 A10BETHE AR L3
TERBNRGEITHREETENRE -

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares
deemed to be in issue during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares, after taking into account
the capitalisation issue that took place on 10 January 2020 as set out
in Note 33 and the issue of shares pursuant to the Reorganisation
as detailed in Note 1.2, were deemed to have been issued since 1
January 2018.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used for such
purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the issue
of shares in connection with the capitalisation issue which took
place on 10 January 2020.

BZ12A318LEE

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
EN/NCIY: S SR E PN ) Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
FRHEM(THET) of the Company (HKD’000) 33,390 77,018
DETERRY Weighted average number of ordinary
IR (FH) shares in issue ('000) 1,500,000 1,500,000
BRERREEZN B Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 2.2 5.1

HRFEALEETENNEESETE R
B EREARRETRN 2 I EEE o

There were no differences between the basic and diluted earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

EFERZRERAT
201947k
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12 9% - BERRXRE

12 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HEWE &R %ER BER
EREEE £ WARE B AE @it
Furniture,
fixtures
Right-of-use Leasehold and office Plant and Motor
assets improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
THER AR TAx FHET THT TEL
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
R2018F1 818 At 1 January 2018
B Cost 25,520 37,352 16,950 81,971 2,052 163,845
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (23,437) (30,403) (7,835) (32,318) (476) (94,469)
REFE Net book amount 2,083 6,949 9,115 49,653 1,576 69,376
BZE2018% Year ended 31 December
12A31BLEE 2018
HARE I E Opening net book amount 2,083 6,949 9,115 49,653 1,576 69,376
NE Additions 71,052 7,995 3,165 13,776 1,013 97,001
E Depreciation (13,127) (3,071) (2,973) (12,224) (584) (31,979)
& Disposals - (1,057) (435) (783) - (2,275)
EHES Exchange differences (1,804) (337) (390) (2,522) (64) (5,117)
HREEFE Closing net book amount 58,204 10,479 8,482 47,900 1,941 127,006
#2018%128318 At 31 December 2018
B Cost 93,349 41,896 18,572 89,419 2,961 246,197
2EHE Accumulated depreciation (35,145) (31,417 (10,090) (41,519 (1,020) (119,191)
REFE Net book amount 58,204 10,479 8,482 47,900 1,941 127,006
BZE2019% Year ended 31 December
12A31BLEE 2019
HREERE Opening net book amount 58,204 10,479 8,482 47,900 1,941 127,006
RE Additions - 601 2,503 10,821 - 13,925
e Depreciation (14,004) (2,665) 2,739) (12,769) (632) (32,809)
HeE Disposals - (17) (1,090) (1,437) - (2,544)
EHEE Exchange differences (703) (96) (96) (762) (12) (1,669)
HAREEEE Closing net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
#2019%128318 At 31 December 2019
XA Cost 91,939 41,486 18,643 95,353 2,926 250,347
2iHhE Accumulated depreciation (48,442) (33,184) (11,583) (51,600) (1,629)  (146,438)
REFE Net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
1 1 8 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Y5 - BMER&RE(E)

HZE2019F12831HILEE - ITERX
478,669,000 7T (2018 4F : 7,825,000/5
J0) B TR S 0Bk & 4922,743,00078 7T
(20184 : 21,808,000/8 7T ) B R $H & A A
0Bk ©

13 EFEE

12 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation expenses
of approximately HKD8,669,000 (2018: HKD7,825,000) have
been charged in administrative expenses and approximately
HKD22,743,000 (2018: HKD21,808,000) have been charged in cost
of sales respectively.

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RREH
System
Software
FHET
HKD’000
R20185F1A1H At 1 January 2018
AR Cost 2,007
RETE Accumulated amortisation -
AREVFE Net book amount 2,007
BZ2018F12A31HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2018
HRYIAREDFE Opening net book amount 2,007
NE Additions 564
Bis (Fiske) Amortisation (Note 6) (643)
HRAREDHE Closing net book amount 1,928
720185 12A31H At 31 December 2018
B Cost 2,571
ESE 1 Accumulated amortisation (643)
AREVFE Net book amount 1,928
BZE2019F12831HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
HYIRRE#E Opening net book amount 1,928
NE Additions 3,124
255 (ko) Amortisation (Note 6) (1,614)
HESRERTFE Closing net book amount 3,438
R20195F12A318 At 31 December 2019
B Cost 5,695
RETH#EE Accumulated amortisation (2,257)
IREVEE Net book amount 3,438

BEERRRERAR
- Xzow%i& 1 1 9
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13 BEEE(E) 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

HZE2019F12 A31HIEEFE @ #HEFEIYH
1,614,000/ 7T (20184F : 643,000 7C) 2
RITERBI S 305 o

14 BEREIHNEMTA

During the year ended 31 December 2019, amortisation expenses
of approximately HKD1,614,000 (2018: HKD643,000) has been
charged in administrative expenses.

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

REBERITENESREE
Financial assets carried
at amortised cost

2019 2018
THET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
HEMBRRRAMREE Assets as per consolidated statement of
financial position
Z SR EIE(KizE18) Trade receivables (Note 18) 203,375 255,974
%e M EA WA (M7E15) Deposits and other receivables (Note 15) 2,426 3,757
FEY RERS A FIF B (M5E30)  Amounts due from related companies (Note 30) 2,932 -
FEMEEF R RMBARIFIE  Amount due from the then fellow subsidiary
(M4E30) (Note 30) . 2,506
MR EZZERAGHIE  Amount due from the then immediate holding
(Mf7E30) company (Note 30) - 243,961
EHEARITER(MFE17) Pledged bank deposits (Note 17) 10,000 10,000
e MIESSEYW(MHE17)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 138,623 46,171
357,356 562,369

REBERATENESHEE
Financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost

120

2019 2018
TET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEMBRRARATER Liabilities as per consolidated statement of
financial position
Z 2t EaE (FEE21) Trade payables (Note 21) 113,364 198,799
H IR M EETE A Other payables and accruals
(Pf5E23) (Note 23) 60,622 65,788
HEBEFIFF19) Lease liabilities (Note 19) 47,951 60,649
FER R (M3E22) Bills payables (Note 22) 30,399 49,858
ENERRZRZWMBATZHE  Amounts due to the then fellow subsidiaries
(F45E30) (Note 30) - 1,809
RITRER(MIEE25) Bank borrowings (Note 25) 266,593 396,373
518,929 773,276

Annual Report 2019
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15 BARE - BEREMEWRK 15 PREPAYMENTS,
I/

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

H RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
THExT THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEENHAER Non-current portion
b Deposits 1,309 1,304
WM - R R R Prepayments for acquisition of properties,
A RIE plant and equipment 3,360 1,071
4,669 2,375
BRI Current portion
FEf 08 Prepayment 2,368 3,121
=& (Mizta) Deposits (Note a) 102 1,400
Eof pE R IE 2 AT U ElE{E RS Other tax receivables and VAT recoverable 1,830 16,769
ﬁmﬁéuﬁl IR (Mistab) Other receivables (Notes a and b) 1,015 1,053
BRI FT R (Ffifatc) Deferred listing expenses (Note c) 7,475 2,482
12,790 24,825
17,459 27,200
BT - Notes:
@@ 201956 K2018512A31H « k& RHEAE (@) As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of deposits
YRR B R T B EL N TAEAR S and other receivables approximated their fair values.
b) ZESEREEN  RONARERER (b) The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
(© BEELFTRAIHARE FmEE RIENAEE (c) The deferred listing expenses were incurred in connection with the

LR o

AEEWENFA - e REMBUKGIRR R

listing of the Group and will be deducted from equity upon the listing of

the Group.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other

EERA T EBEHE : receivables were denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
FTET THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
AR RMB 7,099 20,783
BT HKD 10,360 6,417
17,459 27,200

EERRZERAR AR
201947k
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16 7€ 16 INVENTORIES
2019 2018
FExT FA&T
HKD’000 HKD’000
JEM R Raw materials 76,886 121,761
K Work in progress 7,735 16,136
IR Finished goods 42,257 84,984
126,878 222,881

HE2019F12A31BILFE  BRAA
AW ABERNANTERAL A
748,203,000 7T (2018 4F : 945,258,000
BIL) °

HZE2019F 12 A31HILFE - FERER
[ & ¥849409,000/ 7T (20184 « 7 ERE
BE%912,292,0007670) B BRI ETA
[SHERA] o

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales during the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HKD748,203,000 (2018: HKD945,258,000).

Reversal of impairment of inventories amounting to approximately
HKD409,000 (2018: provision for impairment of inventories
approximately HKD12,292,000) were charged to profit or loss and
included in “cost of sales” during the year ended 31 December
2019.

17HERRELZEEBEYREEEHIE 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

TER BANK DEPOSITS
2019 2018
THET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
RITRE Cash at banks 138,395 46,032
FHEES Cash on hand 228 139
ReEMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 138,623 46,171
BIRRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 10,000 10,000
148,623 56,171
EeaaERR Maximum exposure to credit risk 148,395 56,032

7R 20194 12 A 31 H * 10,000,000 /& T
(20184 : 10,000,000/ 7T ) K 1% A & 7
RS IRITMAEBEHIRNEE - 158
RFIEE25 ©

1 22 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

As at 31 December 2019, deposits amounting to HKD10,000,000
(2018: HKD10,000,000) were pledged for the facilities granted by
banks to the Group, details of which are set out in Note 25.
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17 S RBAESZEYREIEMIE 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

TEHE) BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
B MBS EEBYRGEARERERMS Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of
BRELATIER : the consolidated statement of cash flows:
2019 2018
TExT FAT
HKD’000 HKD’000
Be MREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 138,623 46,171
AEBRS KBS EEYAREEBIRT The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
FREOFEENATIIEE - and pledged bank deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
2019 2018
FET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
AR RMB 6,657 2,800
EH USD 48,580 14,214
BT HKD 93,334 39,046
Hith Others 52 111
148,623 56,171
RITIR SR IBEFT HBITERFIERZZBR Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank
BFE o R2019F K% 20185F12 8318 - deposits rate. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying
B4 LRSS EYHERERE A FER amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair values.
= o
R2019F 12 A31H » XEERIRE IR As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
S EBWHE 56,487,000 7T (20184 amounting to approximately HKD6,487,000 (2018: HKD2,717,000),
2,717,000/ 70) » FRPBEEAHETT were deposited with the banks in the PRC where the remittance of
MEE 4 E B F BB FERAINE funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
& 48 Bl K SEFR AT AR R o exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.

ETERIERERAR
- X2019§E$& 1 23
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18 EZ FEWFIE

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
FET TAET
HKD’000 HKD’000
B S IEWGRIE Trade receivables 204,931 257,530
B 5 REWEIE Less: provision for impairment of trade
B receivables (1,556) (1,556)
203,375 255,974
R2019F & 2018F 12 A31H + EF I As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of trade

FERAEEEAFEES
AEEHENEERENTI5E120RTE -
MR2019F N 2018512 A31H » B FEIW

FIE(BEFHRE)1RER B B8R » T
T~

receivables approximated their fair values.

The Group’s sales are made on credit terms ranging from 15 to 120

days.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of trade
receivables, net of impairment, based on invoice date, were as

follows:

2019 2018

THET FHET

HKD’000 HKD’000

0E30K 0 to 30 days 100,298 67,706
31E260X 31 to 60 days 41,829 78,108
61290K 61 to 90 days 28,782 44,210
91E180K 91 to 180 days 26,096 56,877
1812365K 181 to 365 days 3,360 8,297
365 KA Over 365 days 3,010 776
203,375 255,974

M201912 A31 8 » #151,097,0007% 7T
(20184F : 103,649,000/ 7T ) K& 5 FEIL

HRIACBHERRE -
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As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables amounting to
approximately HKD51,097,000 (2018: HKD103,649,000) were past

due but not impaired.
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18 EFEINFIE(E) 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
BEOREREE) 2 ZZHuT Movements of the provision on individual basis were as follows:
2019 2018
THET T
HKD’000 HKD’000
REEA) At beginning of the year 1,556 1,556
B HIRIGRIBR EEE Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(R{ERIEZE) on individual basis - _
RER At end of the year 1,556 1,556
REBKNE S EWREBNETEL N E The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables were
HEHE denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
FERT THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
ETT usb 190,212 244,406
BT HKD 8,639 9,381
BT EURO 40 _
AR® RMB 4,484 2,187
203,375 255,974
20195 K%2018F 12 A31 AN RREE The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2019 and
b & XAt E 5 RKIRR BREE ° 2018 was the carrying value of the trade receivables mentioned
NE B WA AR E R ER - above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

BB ERERAT
- XZOT‘?;%% 1 25
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19 HE 19 LEASES
(@) REE BN REZNFIE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position
RE WA R YR LA T HE S B R K The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
T8 - MR AMEE12 3 - BB & following amounts relating to leases and that the balances were
BYAE included in Note 12 “Properties, plant and equipment”:
2019 2018
FET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
FEREEE Right-of-use assets
L/ES Properties 43,497 58,204
2019 2018
FET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
HEEE Lease liabilities
ERBNE D Non-current portion 34,737 48,714
BN Current portion 13,214 11,935
47,951 60,649
BE2019F12A31BILEFE @ I There were no additions to the right-of-use assets during the
BEREEERE - BLE20185 12 year ended 31 December 2019. Additions to the right-of-use
AMBLEFE  ERAEEEREND assets amounted to approximately HKD71,052,000 during the
71,052,000 7T © year ended 31 December 2018.
2019 K%20185F12A31H » AEH As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of the
HEREMNREESDABITE - Group's lease liabilities were denominated in HKD, except for
AN R EHER 5 5l 4943,688,000% approximately HKD43,688,000 and HKD52,846,000, which
TE 52,846,000/ TTBR SN © were denominated in RMB respectively.

1 2 6 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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19 HE(§)
(b) RFEZHEWAERBERI

RAEzENREREEATHERBR

19 LEASES (continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income included

75 ¢ the following amounts relating to leases:
2019 2018
TERT FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
FREESENERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
MmE Properties 14,004 13,127
HEmERA (M) Finance costs on leases (Note 9) 3,620 3,299
() RFERERERBERANKIE (c) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of cash flows
FREREENRRREWT The total cash outflows for leases during the year were as follow:
2019 2018
TERT FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
RETHEENESRE Cash flows from operating activities
BRANTEIER Payments for short-term leases
RHEAMRERK in respect of:
— - (Fiste) — Properties* (Note 6) 872 2,657
— B Bk es+ (Fiiate) — Plant and machinery* (Note 6) 53 587
METEHELNRSHRE  Cash flows from financing activities
XNEEEEZH SIS Payment of interest element of lease
G liabilities (Note 9) 3,620 3,299
SANEiN-S=N-vd Payment of principal element of lease
NP2y liabilities 11,918 7,459
16,463 14,002
* EHEENRIABEBEY - ERBBEET *  Payments for short-term leases were not shown separately, but
ABF27afT 25 E EEENFRS BN included in the line of “profit before income tax” in respect of the

[BRPTSBATE A TR E A o

net cash generated from operations which were presented in Note
27a using the indirect method.

EERRZERAR AR
201947k

127
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EIEFTEH 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
2019 2018
FET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
R IR E = Deferred tax assets 5,078 6,010
HE2019F M2018F12 A31HIEFE - The movement in deferred tax assets during the years ended 31
EERIBEERE ) (R RIKEERE December 2019 and 2018, without taking into consideration the
BRIEHERANREEHR) T ¢ offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:
£
BEER
e HEAE ot
Rights-of-use
assets and lease
Provisions liabilities Total
FAT FAT FAT
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
R2018E1 818 At 1 January 2018 2,568 39 2,607
RizazEkaER Credited/(charged) to the
N8R ($0BR) consolidated statement of
(f¥7E10) comprehensive income (Note 10) 3,073 585 3,658
PEH =% Exchange differences (234) 1) (255)

M2018F12A31B &

At 31 December 2018 and

20191718 1 January 2019 5,407 603 6,010
RiRra 2 EREER (Charged)/credited to the
CCIVPN = consolidated statement of
(Kt#E10) comprehensive income (Note 10) (1,362) 521 (841)
PE M =28 Exchange differences (71) (20) (91)
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 3,974 1,104 5,078
2019612 A318 - NEE R F BB The PRC subsidiary of the Group has undistributed earnings of
NAEIEA AR DK E N K 48,872,000 7 7T approximately HKD48,872,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
(20184 : 36,492,000/ 7T ) + fisi A A IRAT HKD36,492,000), which, if paid out as dividends, would be
PRB - RIS A iE - &R subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable temporary
EH BB QRS IKRE R - BME difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been recognised
FERAGEREEZRE - ERERIELER as the parent entity is able to control the timing of distributions of
BEE BEAEAIFERNRKTIEHIK dividends from the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute

SR -

these profits in the foreseeable future.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21 EREMNFRIR 21 TRADE PAYABLES
2019 2018
TERT FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
2 S e IR Trade payables 113,364 198,799
20194 2018512 A31H - BZE( As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of trade
TIAREZEAHNRERSTAT payables, based on invoice date, were as follows:
2019 2018
FET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
0E30K 0 to 30 days 49,588 132,176
31E260XK 31 to 60 days 32,243 30,995
61%290K 61 to 90 days 16,420 18,553
91£180K 91 to 180 days 9,875 11,452
1812365K 181 to 365 days 984 1,831
365 AL £ Over 365 days 4,254 3,792
113,364 198,799
AEEE S EMNFIEBNREENL NIEE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were
sHE : denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
THET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BT HKD 13,095 44,728
=TT usD 50,892 45,370
N RMB 48,061 106,707
Ho Others 1,316 1,994
113,364 198,799
#2019F K£2018F12 8318 * ESEN As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of trade

FIAMRAEEEL N FERE

o

payables approximated their fair values.

ETERIERERAR
- Soozs 129



e R R R K

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 BRE 22 BILLS PAYABLES
2019 2018
FET FHT
HKD’000 HKD’000
VEANE S Bills payables 30,399 49,858

MR2019F 2018512 A31H » ERZHE
MEREES BT E A EE A EES -

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of bills
payables were all denominated in HKD and approximated their fair
values.

23 EHMENRERETERUR 23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND

3 3IE R 465 B
(a) HttENFERESER

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

(@) Other payables and accruals

2019 2018

TR THETT

HKD’000 HKD’000

FEFHE BB Accrued employee benefit expenses 17,799 34,080

FERHEHEMEMx Accrued sale commission expenses 16,792 15,335

Hib B &R Other accruals 8,455 18,477

FERT ETRX Accrued listing expenses 8,717 3,174
WM - BE RERED Payables for acquisition of properties,

FERT R IR plant and equipment 2,986 3,046

Hfth & - IR Other payables 32,959 30,814

87,708 104,926

MR2019FK2018512 A31H » HithjE
NRBRETERNEmESLRL AT
B -

NG Y E A PR BB KRB R B A A
BREEATIIERRHE

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of
other payables and accruals approximated their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and
accruals were denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018

FHT FHET

HKD’000 HKD’000

AR RMB 17,236 25,965
EJT usD 27,681 21,637
BT HKD 42,791 57,324
87,708 104,926
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WEMENRERETERUKR 23 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND

IESEB AT B ()
(b) 3ESE R KT 5 BY

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS (continued)

(b) Deferred government grants

2019 2018

FET T

HKD’000 HKD’000

M A1TA At 1 January _ _

FAREW Received during the year 2,925 _
B8 2GR Released to the consolidated

(M7E7b) statement of comprehensive income

(Note 7b) (1,348) -

1,577 -

JERNEREL 7 Non-current portion 428 _

BIHEAER > Current portion 1,149 _

1,577 _

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE - BWE|
B BARE B 58 R BT AT 5B W BT AR
By REMFEX - EE2019F12 A31
B AEERELEETZSATE
BERBREMTAE - ALt - BETE
RFIAD R2019F12 A31 HIELE ° B
EARBAED I - SN
L 18 AR K IR S S A -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, government grants
have been received for the purchases of equipment and software
licenses, and reimbursement of expenses. Up to 31 December
2019, certain of these expenses and the equipment and software
licenses have not been incurred or purchased by the Group.
Therefore, the corresponding advance payments have been
deferred as at 31 December 2019. Except for the aforementioned
unutilised portions, there are no other unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants.

BFERLBRARAT
- X2019$§4§ 1 31
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24 R 2

24 DIVIDENDS

HZE2019F 128318 ILEE - ENERE
2% A &) /9 AR B AR S.104,000,0007% 7T A
IS TE U E B BRI IR A RIFIE R 5 A
=

R2020F3 A27HE TN EE S22

BEEEZRMNEZE2019F12 8318 1HE
ERARBEREZREBIR0.01E T &1
20,000,000 7T ° REAR ERN L Fhr & B
BHRERPARMABEMRE - BFERER
FEEBRFAFAS EHER - ZBREBR
BLAE E2020F12 A31 B IEFEMBFUY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interim dividends
payable to the then immediate holding company amounting to
HKD104,000,000 were settled by way of offsetting the amount due
from the then immediate holding company.

At the board meeting held on 27 March 2020, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.01 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019, amounting
to a total of HKD20,000,000. The final dividend was not reflected
as dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements, but
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ending 31 December 2020 after receiving shareholders” approval at

mhC the forthcoming annual general meeting.

25 SRITER 25 BANK BORROWINGS

2019 2018
TET FHAT
HKD’000 HKD’000

FEENEAER S Non-current portion
——E5F —1to0 2 years 28,500 -
——&h%F -2 to 5 years 16,500 -
45,000 -

ENHAER Current portion

——FR — within 1 year 6,000 -
— B ENRIEE - repayable on demand 215,593 396,373
221,593 396,373
266,593 396,373
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25 SRITIEER(E) 25 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

SR BB E K A B R R T
ST ¢

The bank borrowings were repayable, without taking into account
the repayable on demand clauses, as follows:

2019 2018

FTERT FHET

HKD’000 HKD’000

—FK Within 1 year 221,593 376,373
—E-F Between 1 and 2 years 28,500 10,000
—ERF Between 2 and 5 years 16,500 10,000
266,593 396,373

M2019F12A31H » B2 —ERTER
T B B SR (B IR B9 G (A ) BO I6RSR Y
R 178 R 49215,593,00078 7T (2018 4F :
396,373,000 L) DA REEE - T
BRARE B ERITEIGER X -

M2019%12 8318 @ RITERE T
BERENRD R E4.4% (20185 :3.7%) °

MR2019F K 2018F12 A31H » ZEEH
RITER TS ITEHE - BEEAFER

++

Eo

M20194E % 2018412 A31 8 » RITEK
RARTTRLVE JhLA T AR B /R

(i) ETHEBAREANETHE:

(i) & TRIE R BRHEAYHE(R 323,000,000
BT REURBIRENEREREER

(i) FMSPA20194F K 2018F12 A31 B 1R
HEEPREEER - BREERTHENF
15 BARMMTE3.2%30

(iv) ELFRBHRGEK

V) RRRIBEMZERBERAZELER

ARRBHEBRBRABRELERENE
IREREALER - &

(vi) $RYT1FFK10,000,0005 7T (BsE17) o

As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of approximately
HKD215,593,000 (2018: HKD396,373,000) which contain a clause
that gives the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time has been classified as a current liability irrespective of the
probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.

As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average effective interest rate
on bank borrowings was 4.4% (2018: 3.7%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, bank borrowings of the Group
were denominated in HKD and approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the bank borrowings and
banking facilities were secured by the following:
(i) Certain properties owned by certain related companies;

(ii) Guarantee of HKD323,000,000 from certain related companies;
and guarantee of unlimited amounts from Defond HK;

(iii) Guarantee of unlimited amount from Rayson as at 31 December
2019 and 2018. For details of the guarantee arrangement, please
refer to Notes 3.2 and 30;

(iv) Letter of undertaking from Defond HK;

(v) Personal guarantee of unlimited amounts from Mr. Raymond
Chu, a director and Controlling Shareholder of the Company,
and Mr. Wilson Chu, the Controlling Shareholder of the
Company; and

(vi) Bank deposits amounting to HKD10,000,000 (Note 17).

BEERRRERAR
- Xzow%i& 1 33
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26 B 26 SHARE CAPITAL

BRAEE [ERE]
Number of shares Nominal value
T FH&T
000 HKD’000

7201941 H15H8 At 15 January 2019
(sFfAksz BER) (date of incorporation) _ _
BTN Issuance of shares 1,000 10
2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 1,000 10

BERER2019F12 8108 BBENEE
SREBZ - 202051 A108 - HEERK
TR D 3% N B2 1T 423£1,499,000,000 1 & A%
E0.01 B AR - A £ B HiRLL B &
AREHIRD & B IR 14,990,000 7T
BER([EAREETT]) -

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on
10 December 2019, a total of 1,499,000,000 shares of HKDO0.01
each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders as
of 10 January 2020 on a pro rata basis by way of capitalisation of
HKD14,990,000 (the “Capitalisation Issue”) from the Company’s
share premium account on the Listing Date.
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27 MEBERERME

@ FABRAEHRAGNEZEEE

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax for the

TR YR year to net cash generated from operations

2019 2018

FTET FHT

HKD’000 HKD’000

MRAT S B AR R Profit before income tax 43,960 96,159

MATBIAEL TR - Adjustments for:

BT ONCIET)) Finance income (Note 9) (69) (3,980)

BhE AN (F5E9) Finance costs (Note 9) 19,362 15,205

EMEE12) Depreciation (Note 12) 31,412 29,633

#iE(fEE13) Amortisation (Note 13) 1,614 643
FEREER), (Reversal of)/provision for impairment of

(K7¥6) inventories (Note 6) (409) 12,292
HEME - BER Losses on disposal of properties,

FiEeEE (FiEb) plant and equipment (Note b) 2,291 1,987
RERBEETE Long service payment scheme - (65)
BB (BI7E7b) Government grants (Note 7b) (1,348) _

96,813 151,874
LEECEY Changes in working capital:

— 8 5 REMFEWRIE — Trade and other receivables 69,454 21,259

—FE — Inventories 95,816 (28,373)

— BARGBS 77 7 KRR — Balances with related parties (2,242) (18,057)

—B S REMERMKIA — Trade and other payables (100,927) (68,050)

N NES - Bills payables (19,459) (30,550)

—IEER T B — Deferred government grants 2,151 -
KEEERFRE Net cash generated from operations 141,606 28,103

b) REEBRERERT  HEW
R BERRERERERSE

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
proceeds from disposal of properties, plant and
equipment comprised:

2019 2018
FET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
HEREHE Net book amounts disposed 2,544 2,275
HEMZE - BER Losses on disposal of properties,
HEaEsE (KisE7a) plant and equipment (Note 7a) (2,291) (1,987)
HEWE - BE & Proceeds from disposal of properties,
ZAEATISFRIE plant and equipment 253 288
BFERERARAR
oroxm 135
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27 GREBRERERME(E) 27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) MEFBELENEGEHRNOT ¢ (c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from
financing activities were as follows:

HEAE BARE RITHER
Lease Dividend Bank
liabilities payable borrowings
T FHET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
M2018F181H At 1 January 2018 2,244 30,000 318,594
REenE Cash flows
—RTT{EFFTS58E  — Proceeds from bank borrowings - - 870,645
—(BRIF{TER - Repayment of bank borrowings - - (792,866)
—BRRE — Dividend paid - (30,000) -
—YXNHEERRE — Payment of principal element of
RKEED lease liabilities (7,459) - -
—YNEEAEZ — Payment of interest element of
I BE D lease liabilities (3,299) - -
HibIER & #H) Other non-cash movements
—HE& G — Additions of lease liabilities 71,052 - -
—EN =5 — Exchange difference (1,889) - -
M20185F12H31HK At 31 December 2018 and
20191 81H 1 January 2019 60,649 - 396,373
WemE Cash flows
—IRTTIEFRFISHEIAE - Proceeds from bank borrowings - - 896,933
—EBERIBITER — Repayment of bank borrowings - - (1,026,713)
—-XfHE8EY — Payment of principal element of
Ke by lease liabilities (11,918) - -
—YNHEEBRZ — Payment of interest element of
F B EB D lease liabilities (3,620) - -
Hih 3R 2 28 Other non-cash movements
—FMERX — Interest expenses 3,620 - =
—ERERE - Exchange difference (780) - -
M2019%12831H At 31 December 2019 47,951 - 266,593
d) TEFBRERF ! (d) Major non-cash transactions:
() #E2018F12A31BILFE - & (i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, amounts

g B B R B A B FRIB K E
ERE XK B AR AFRIES BIL
113,308,000 7 7T }. 1,069,000 &
TEEBEZEREEERAT -

due from the then fellow subsidiaries and amount due to
the then fellow subsidiary amounting to approximately
HKD113,308,000 and HKD1,069,000 respectively were
novated to the then immediate holding company.

(i) EZE2019F12A31HILFE & (i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, interim
NEREEERAGNHHRS dividends payable to the then immediate holding company
104,000,0007%8 7T )43 48 1 34 FE Uk amounting to HKD104,000,000 were settled by way of
EEEEERA R REN AR offsetting the amount due from the then immediate holding
i company.

1 3 6 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28 TEMBATFHE

REER2019F12 A31BENEENBAF]
IR o BrRBEFAN BRI EREE R
AeERAEEEZFENERRAN B
BENAEESLL ISR AEBRNERER
o AMK K ELHBERNAEETEE
E$:h )

28 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are set out
below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the Group, and the
proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held
by the Group. The countries of incorporation or registration are also
their principal place of business.

FRESENEERER
Ownership interest held
by the Group
2019 2018
MR, FREBR i/ BRTR
WEAFEMR BomER A8 e BAERA EEEL £ BAED
Place and date of Registered/
incorporation/ Principal activitiesand ~ issued and Interest Interest
Name of subsidiary registration place of operation fully paid up capital held held
B
Direct interests:
Brilliant Holdings RERUHS REBRZES 1% 100% TEm
Investments Group Limited 2019418108 ETREER
Brilliant Holdings BVI; Investment holding in UsD1 100% N/A
Investments Group 10 January 2019 BVI
Limited
B
Indirect interests:
BFERARAA BE 2010678298 REBHERTER 100,000 7T
Wise Ally Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong; 29 July 2010 Trading of electronic HKD100,000 100% 100%
products in Hong Kong
REBENEXARAR  PE RPEIRGER 64,800,000 7C
2010612A13H HEETER
Dongguan Wise Ally The PRC; 13 December  Manufacturing and trading  HKD64,800,000 100% 100%
Industrial Co., Ltd.* 2010 of electronic products in
REBRNEFARLRT) the PRC

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only. This company
does not have official English name.

BERBERARAT
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29 BEAEIE 29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RER - EFTHERAREENE RN Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred at the end of
T the year was as follows:
2019 2018
FET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
EETAYE R B Contracted but not provided for 2,235 1,087
30 BB R 7 R A& 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
BABSE 5 278 e AR~ FRRIE I S K Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
REHSFERNINEMTTREATE jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party in
N BRSERREHRNESMERFE holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
EEZTAMZOR  URBERDEHERE returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
HRERAES  WFEREERRNEHE its power over the investee to affect the amounts of the investor’s
BETT o RANE 7 X B RE H sk L F 1% returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
il - TRARAR S EEEE TS o BREE S AT LA A A common control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals
HEMERE - or other entities.
PERRPRER DA FET. 13 EE » The Controlling Shareholders are disclosed in Note 1.1.
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30 BARE S X 5 K 48R ()

FARAKEFEXZNERRMEBTAT

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group during the

year were as follows:

B
Related parties

A2019F % 20185F 12 31 B EAREE R BIE
Relationship with the Group as at

31 December 2019 and 2018

MiaE

a -

REEBRE
Mr. Raymond Chu

Mr. Wilson Chu

WO S
Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley

BRERLE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming

REEXARRAA

Defond Electrical Industries Limited

mERE
Defond HK

M=

Rayson

MMEX(RZ)ERAT]
Liren Industry (Dongguan) Limited*
(MMEZ (R%) BRAF)

REMSEASERAT
Dongguan City Zuo Feng Hardware Limited*
(REMELRLARAR)

EEEARERNAERAR(AIBRREESBRAR)
Defond Electech Co., Ltd* (B2 E AR B K AR A
(formerly known as Dongguan Chen Da Electronics Limited*

(REREEFESRBRAF))
Notes:

M2018F1 A1BUAKREZE20185F12 4198 - s
FERAMBE(RX)BRAR(FENEZE
HEBAR) AR RERET - BRIERHA

2018F 12 A20 A M B E sk + LRI FR A —
BE=FHERERFGERIMEE(RE)E
RARIMZIAAE - NIEER - FiE RFIRE
¥(RE)ERARNR2018F12A31BHE—S
B=HEH -

FERRPIRER

Controlling Shareholder

FERR AR

Controlling Shareholder

ARABES

Director of the Company

B EEb

Note b

P FE A AR SR 2

Controlled by Controlling Shareholders
i 22 P S ER A%

Controlled by Controlling Shareholders
EEE!

Note a

fta

Note a

PR 15 AR AR BR 2

Controlled by Controlling Shareholders

i 22 P SR A%
Controlled by Controlling Shareholders

As at 1 January 2018 and up to 19 December 2018, Rayson and Liren
Industry (Dongguan) Limited* (FIfRE 2 (Rze) R A7), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Rayson, were collectively controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders. Pursuant to a sales and purchase agreement
dated 20 December 2018, the Controlling Shareholders disposed of their
entire equity interests in Rayson and Liren Industry (Dongguan) Limited*
(FIprEZ (R5) BARZAR) to a third-party. Subsequent to the disposal,
Rayson and Liren Industry (Dongguan) Limited* (FIfRE 2 (R5e) BIR

/2 7)) are controlled by a third party as at 31 December 2018.

PBRAERREAEBER2019F3 A 19R REZ T AR b:
BEBENES -

Mr. Chan Chi Ming has been appointed as the director of HK Wise Ally
since 19 March 2019.

*  For identification purpose only

EFERZRERAT
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30 AR T R 5 K R () 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(a) BERAEE H 2 &8k (@) Balances with related parties
2019 2018
THET FAET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BESME Trade nature
PEUR BB EE A R FIE Amounts due from related companies
— RS BAIREA — Defond Electech Co., Ltd* ({2 & EAIF}
BT B BIRAR) (formerly known as
(AR ERESR Dongguan Chen Da Electronics Limited*
BRAR) (REREBHFARRA)) 366 -
—EEEERRRAA] — Defond Electrical Industries Limited 2,566 -
2,932 -
EBHEREZRKMEATNE Amount due from the then fellow subsidiary
— =B E AR — Defond Electech Co., Ltd* ({ZZ E AR}
BRAR(AIERERE D BMR AR (formerly known as
BRARRA) Dongguan Chen Da Electronics Limited*
(REREBHFARAA)) - 2,506
Eﬁ"‘"ﬂ%ﬂ?{iﬁ'}%'{} FIFIE  Amounts due to the then fellow subsidiaries
—EEEEERA — Defond Electrical Industries Limited = 1,803
—Q%\ﬁﬁ—%ﬂ(ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ — Dongguan City Zuo Feng Hardware Limited*
(REMELZRSAERAR) - 6
- 1,809
FEZME Non-trade nature
EWEREZEZERATHRE  Amount due from the then immediate
holding company
—meEE — Defond HK = 243,961

*  For identification purpose only
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30 BARE S X 5 K 48R ()

(a) EREBERE TS 2 A Bk (AR)

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(@) Balances with related parties (continued)

R2019%F 2018412 A31H » EUES
G F) ERRARMBARRERE
BEERARIEAEER - £E KA
RAR+—EAREE -

AR B R MR R B A B K B (R A PR
DRI K A R A B K B B [ &
P A RISIE — IR 60RRIEEH -

F2019F 2 2018F 12 A31H » BRNE
SMER R A FFIE - BKE
HRRAWBATNZERENERRR
MIB AR FIEREEHHAMERER DT
U

& L Bl B OB

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amounts due from
related companies, the then fellow subsidiaries and the then
immediate holding company were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within the next twelve months.

The Group’s amounts due from and to related companies and
the then fellow subsidiaries were made generally on credit terms
of 60 days.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the aging analysis of
amounts due from related companies, amount due from the
then fellow subsidiary and amounts due to the then fellow
subsidiaries of trade nature, based on invoice date, were as
follows:

Amounts due from related companies

2019 2018
THET T
HKD’000 HKD’000
0E30K 0 to 30 days 46 -
31E260K 31 to 60 days 320 -
61E90K 61 to 90 days - _
91E180K 91 to 180 days 2,566 -
2,932 -
JRE W 5 B ) 25 B R 1 B KR Amount due from the then fellow subsidiary

2019 2018
TERT THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
0&30K 0 to 30 days - 2,506

BEERERARAT
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30 B S X 5 R ek (4R) 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(a) BEEAEE 5 2 68 () (@) Balances with related parties (continued)
FETE R R RWB R FIKIE Amounts due to the then fellow subsidiaries
2019 2018
FHET TET
HKD’000 HKD’000
0&30K 0 to 30 days - 160
31E260X 31 to 60 days - 213
61E90K 61 to 90 days - 512
912180k 91 to 180 days - 924
- 1,809
(b) ERREB AN S (b) Transactions with related parties

B AR EMIBOTINES Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

S BZE2019F 22018F 12 A31H1E statements, the following transactions were carried out with

FE UTRSIRE S EREBTHIR related parties during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

= B R T ST 2018, at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

(i) ERBRFEEHNBAALRARE (i) Personal guarantees provided by the Controlling
RIEEFTIE AT RN A TR Shareholders and corporate guarantees provided by
1R companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders
HZE2019F %2018%F12 8318 1 During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
FEE . ETAEBEETESRE certain of the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
1T 08 LA £ 25 B 3 42 A% % 5 18 facilities were secured by personal guarantees from the
R E AR - LA RIS S BT Controlling Shareholders and corporate guarantees provided
285N R A TR VER IR o by companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as

set out in Note 25.

1 42 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 BARE S X 5 K 48R ()

(b) EERARE T IR 5 ()
BEXS

(i) HBER

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Continuing transactions

(ii) Purchase of goods

2019 2018
TET THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BB AR REE M Purchases of goods from a
related company 99 -
BERRZRMBAR Purchases of goods from the then
REBES fellow subsidiaries 1,592 5,972
EBFEXRS Discontinuing transactions
(i) Wz (iii) Revenue
2019 2018
TET THET
HKD’000 HKD’000
RS EE =N Sales to the then fellow subsidiaries
YEHSHE 17,820 49,995
(iv) Fx% (iv) Expenses
2019 2018
THET FHET
HKD’000 HKD’000
) & B[] X P 8 ) Corporate expenses to the then fellow
TRTERT subsidiary - 12,100
B G ES NG Reimbursement of expenses to the then
BERAX fellow subsidiaries 1,011 90
BFBRERBR AR
w0z 143
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30 BARE S X 7 K 48R ()

(b) EREBEE T IR 5 (4R)

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

FEERXZ (F) Discontinuing transactions (continued)
(v) HERE (v) Sale of equipment
2019 2018
T T
HKD’000 HKD’000
RIS EE =N Sales of equipment to the then fellow
HERE subsidiaries 478 42
(vi) FIEWA (vi) Interest income
2019 2018
FET T
HKD’000 HKD’000
KEEREEIZIRARHA Interest income from the then
FEWA immediate holding company - 3,907
(vii) RE (vii) Dividend
2019 2018
FET FET
HKD’000 HKD’000
BEEREREER Dividend declared to the then
/NI N immediate holding company 104,000 -

144
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The above related party transactions were carried out on terms
mutually agreed between the parties. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these transactions were conducted in
the ordinary course of business of the Group and in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.
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30 BB AR REER (&) 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

() TEEEEHM (c) Key management compensation
MEERBENIENEZERED Compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
FEF R services is shown below:

2019 2018
FET T
HKD’000 HKD’000
ITERG® Wages and salaries 21,574 21,659
BRIRE KA — FRTEHFRETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution plan 144 131
21,718 21,790
31 EENAERER 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(@) EEf < (@) Directors’ emoluments

BREENENETIAT The remuneration of each director is set out below:

BER EIHERHAS
ik e RfefeA ENRE  SHENHER act
Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary  and benefits  to pension
Fees Salary bonus in kind scheme Total
TATL TATL TAT TAT TATL TAL
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000

HZ22019% For the year ended
12A31BLEE 31 December 2019

NTES Executive directors

- iC] ~ Chu Wai Hang Raymond - 1,300 - - - 1,300

-G - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley = 3,500 1,522 1,440 18 6,480

— B — Chan Chi Ming - 1,715 395 - - 2,110

BUIEHTES  Independent non-executive

directors

— BB - Ling Imma Kit Sum - - _ _ _ _

—FEfp - Lee Wa Lun Warren - _ _ _ _ _

— AIfEGIRE - Szeto Yuk Ting - - _ - _ _
- 6,515 1,917 1,440 18 9,890

BE20185F For the year ended

12A31B1L5E 31 December 2018

WTEF Executive directors

—KEf — Chu Wai Hang Raymond = 1,300 - - - 1,300

- ZHE - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley - 3,980 2,400 960 18 7,358
- 5,280 2,400 960 18 8,658

ETERIERERAR
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31 EEMRIE K = ()

@ EEM<E(H)

R2019F3 811 H » KREBEELER
FARRRNITESTRER  REH
A EERAT AN AR MITEERRIT
AR - AR AMR2019F3H19
HEZTAARRMITESE - TR -
BENBARBETHBRARIES
k/RAEEREE  MASERFS
BEAERARRINITESH - BAESE
EBZEWNBARINES R, RAE
ErEERFEEZNME

ERLE T FEREERATERE
FER2019F 12 AI0B ER T AAR
RIS IEFNITESE - BLE20195F12H
3THIEFE - BYIERITESIWEI
BEE5DWEERESEFH -

HE2019F K20184F12 A31HIEF
& BEARRER)REMBUK
RS EREEB : () EEAQF
BB AR EBSHN A BRI
B ENBE 0 Rii)HESERER
EZEAME -

(b) EBRABRRLKLEEFR

HZE2019F %20184F 12 A31 B L4
B BMERRIEERENESERE
kBB AIIELE  BRIKEF
S AEF] : INEAERFEFRE -

o RERHESRBMAE=S
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond were redesignated as executive
director and Chairman of the Company, and Mr. Tsang Ming
Chit Stanley was redesignated as executive director and CEO
of the Company on 11 March 2019. Mr. Chan Chi Ming was
appointed as executive director of the Company on 19 March
2019. They were also directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and/or employees of the Group during the year and
the Group paid emoluments to them in their capacity as the
directors of these subsidiaries and/or employees of the Group
before their appointment as executive directors of the Company.

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr.
Szeto Yuk Ting were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 10 December 2019. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the independent non-executive
directors have not received any directors’ remuneration in the
capacity of directors.

None of the directors of the Company (i) received or paid any
remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii) received or
paid emoluments in respect of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries’
undertaking; and (iii) waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor were any payables
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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31 EEMRIE K = ()

d) BRLUES - HEBEESEH

HEABREREEGRENE
BAZBANER - ZERR
Htp X 5 &R

B eMBRREMEAERESE
SN BYFE32PA B ER TRIREEL
HMERABENT

BRAEE BEME

Name of the borrower  Nature of connection

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, maximum liability that may be incurred under the
guarantee as disclosed in Note 3.2 was as below:

RUHEE

RET

ERAME

ERNEH

8/ BHE

HEEN

aff/aaE

Amounts/

aggregate

amounts

paid or

liability/

ERTUREENRAEE aggregate

Maximum liability that may be incurred liabilities

under the guarantee incurred

RERD during the

BB/ EL RER financial year

Individually/ B/ EH for the purpose

ERJEHME in aggregate Individually/ of fulfilling
Nature of at the in aggregate the guarantee or
guarantee or beginning at the end RER discharging
security of the year of the year  During the year the security
TATL TAT TATL TATL

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000

BEW019F 128310 LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

EeER PR AR EY
REENEE

Defond HK Controlled body
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders

g

&

Guarantee

85,000 282,000 282,000 -

BERBERARAT
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31 EEMRIE K = ()

(d)

148

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

ERLEE HBHEBEEEZEE4 (d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
NEABRNEEEEENS dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
RBAEAZHZEANENR  EEXRRK corporate by and connected entities with such
HtXZHNER (&) directors (continued)
REHEE
HETT
ERASER
BERGEH
RE/ 5
HELN
aff/BAE
Amounts/
aggregate
amounts
paid or
liability/
ERTITRELNRARRE aggregate
Maximum liability that may be incurred liabilities
under the guarantee incurred
REA during the
BE/EHR REXR financial year
Individually/ B/ EL for the purpose
ERREANE in aggregate Individually/ of fulfilling
Nature of at the in aggregate the guarantee or
ERAER BEME guarantee or beginning at the end RER discharging
Name of the borrower  Nature of connection  security of the year of the year  During the year the security
TRT TAL TAT THET
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
BE201BF12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018:
flfE PR R A R
SEEAEE
Rayson Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling (Note)
Shareholders 43,421 (Fif3E) 76,525 -
meEE PRRRARREY R
REENER
Defond HK Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders - 85,000 85,000
izt : BIE B EIR2018F 12 A20HME & Note: Pursuant to a sales and purchase agreement dated 20 December

Wi ERBRREERERFEND
ERA%AE (AN FE30FTIRER ) © 120194
128318 - EEBFAFEREND
74,599,000 7T (20184 : 64,927,000
I MERDAEHR - BR ETERR
|§,% °

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

2018, the Controlling Shareholders disposed of their entire equity
interests in Rayson as disclosed in Note 30. As at 31 December
2019, the guarantee amounting to approximately HKD74,599,000
(2018: HKD64,927,000), provided by HK Wise Ally to Rayson
remained effective but was released upon the Listing.
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31 EEWRI= R s () 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(e EENRXS  RUEFEHNDPH (e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
BEAfER arrangements or contracts
BREGEEHBEREREMTOMBERS Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
Sh » RRRIEERI LA RNREERNE statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
PEESEEEEEAERMNER contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
B E20195 &2018F 12 A31H [EF Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
EAEASEFEERASEXEKE had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
BANEARS - THEREH - at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

32 MR R R AN B HEES 32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

@) A FHBAARREK (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
2019
Bt E FTERT
Note HKD’000
gE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
 BHEMBAR .. Investmentinasubsidiary s
REEE Current assets
BREETAR ... Deferred listing expenses T
wmEE Total assets 75,383
rE# EQUITY
ARREHEFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
FEih R of the Company
(LN Share capital b 10
BN Capital reserve b 67,898
REtEsia Accumulated losses b (15,753)
RmEm  Totalequity 2
RBEE Current liabilities
Hb I RIE R ESER Other payables and accruals 8,717
FEATHY B2 B FE Amount due to a subsidiary 14,511
pox .. Totalliabilities B
EEREEARE Total equity and liabilities 75,383
$Qﬂ?’\]%ﬁf%§ﬁiﬁ5ﬁ\2§ﬂjﬁ§2\020¢3ﬂ The statement of financial position of the Company was
27 AEBERGME - TRKRUATA approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and was
TEE: signed on its behalf:
BT KEE Tsang Ming Chit Stanley Chu Wai Hang Raymond
EE EFE Director Director

ETERIERERAR
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N HMBERRERAATREEES 32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) BER KN TFEEE (b) Share capital and reserve movement of the Company
[ EXfHE ZitEE BrEs
Share Capital Accumulated Total
capital reserve losses equity
FAT FTHET TET FAET
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
(Pt7Ea)
(Note a)

R2019F1A15H Balance at 15 January 2019
(FEMA HE) (date of incorporation)

AR S S S
2HER Comprehensive loss
ERNER Loss for the year - - (15,753) (15,753)
- - (15,753) (15,753)

BB NEITHRS  Transaction with owners
BEEAET Issuance of ordinary shares

B pursuant to the Reorganisation

(H3¥1.2) (Note 1.2) 10 67,898 - 67,908
B AETH Total transaction with owners

RHEHE 10 67,898 - 67,908
20195128318 K  Balance at 31 December 2019

@ik 10 67,898 (15,753) 52,155

Mi%E Note:

(@ M2019F 128138 @ KELEBE (@) As at 13 December 2019, as directed by Defond HK, the entire
7~ Brilliant Holdings /) & #F £ 3 17 % issued shares of Brilliant Holdings were transferred to the Company
MEEETEARE - UWBRBMEAAF M in exchanges of the Company allotting and issuing 1,000,000
Smartview ~ Smart Union & Grandview shares in total to Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview. The
fic 3% X 3 17 48 51 1,000,000 & AR f5 - excess of net assets value of Brilliant Holdings in aggregate as at 13
Brilliant Holdings 7420194 12 A 13 H#Y December 2019 over the par value of 1,000,000 ordinary shares at
% & FE # (A # 11,000,000 A% & A% H & HK$0.01 per share was credited to the capital reserve account with
0.01ETHEBRANEENRY - B the amount of HK$67,898,000.

ANBRFHERR - ©75867,898,0007 7T °
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33 /HEPRBEMNSE

BRI E B AR D FAIREE SN -

ITEKX

EIEF2019512 A31 B8 34 ¢

(a)

BB R 201912 A10 B RIBHE
FRZR  FAQFNKRMEERE
RABRBEZEREEHITHERSM
BRT#ERE  EEEREEAQFRN
20201 H10H BB 05 (B AR AU BR
14,990,000 THFTER  1§5&K
THARIREERBESZ1,499,000,000
AR 1S - AR 2R ERT(SIRE
ERTHEMBE) EERRALERER
PIARRBIRRBMARER - REEE
REPA AR A B AV IR B I HE L 1 B 38 Ko 3%
TZERD - MERROHES AR
ERIFEAERITROHZEREHAL

2020F1 8108 » "RRIEMHRE
BEERZMBMR AR ERLET 8t
2020F1 B10B XA ETmE
ARRAFAE0.25B TR ER 1748
#500,000,000 A% & % - FT1S R IE
@B (MBRAABEROBEITRAZE) A
125,000,000/ 7T °

B M EE253) & (v) B E R sk E R
2020F1 B10BARAIRNEBH AR
SER AR ER LM T AR
WA ARE B QD FERA

B ¥ A AR S (COVID-19)/8 3% ([ #7
HERFESIRE AR PEZEE
MERBZ2ALFERBERETRT
) LA B HIIF B AR R B (COVID-19) &
& BRERHREFFRABKES
EMBE -

REA T BIERABH TN SE
T ARERZEERE (R
REERENZECKRTBREERN
FHEERPRE R -

33 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following significant

events took place subsequent to 31 December 2019:

(a)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders
on 10 December 2019, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited as a result of the issue
of the offer shares by the Company pursuant to the Global
Offering, the directors were authorised to capitalise an amount
of HKD14,990,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company on 10 January 2020 by applying such
sum in paying up in full at par 1,499,000,000 shares, such
shares to be allotted and issued to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on a date prior to the Global Offering
(or as they may direct) in proportion to their then existing
shareholdings in the Company, each ranking equally in all
respects with the then existing issued shares.

On 10 January 2020, the shares of the Company were listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
In connection with the Listing completed on 10 January 2020,
the Company issued a total of 500,000,000 ordinary shares at a
price of HKDO.25 per share for a total proceeds (before related
share issuance costs) of HKD125,000,000.

The guarantees or pledges as set out in Note 25 (i) to (v) were
released upon the Listing of the Company on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 10 January 2020,
and were replaced by corporate guarantees from the Group.

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the
“Novel Coronavirus Outbreak”), a number of provinces and
municipalities in the PRC have taken emergency public health
measures and various actions to prevent the spread of the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19), including imposing restriction
on resumption date of production after the Chinese New Year
Holiday.

The operation of the Group’s production plant in Dongguan
(the “Dongguan Production Plant”) has been suspended after
the statutory holidays of the Chinese New Year as part of the
Chinese government’s countermeasures in containing the Novel
Coronavirus Outbreak.

EFERERERAT
201943k
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KREBBRTBAEREEZEERE
% AEBUZERNBN - #HERS
YEREEREHIREEE - ALt
HEAEREB2020F2 A17B#£ K
WIREEEREE -

SR - AR R REH R EE (EK
EREMRERY  IXETHET
T AERIRTEIR B R EE B -
BERREAEMEMNEREHEAT
Bk o 3R AR S IR B TN E R EEY)
MIER T E  REBmEEGEER
B HEIERM AL - BT S LERSE
SEMEREERANEEELEE I
31812020 FHFFEERZTER °

EERFKRERT - AEEIEEEH
EREZTAELANREXFEM - I
HEFPREBMELARABRIERMER
AR E R D E e A E
REZE - FENETRERRANE
IR RI RE & H AN SR B B9 R 2R B 755 3
RELAERE - AEBREENG
HMUERRERBEHYBRENT
2 YEYERMRUTRESEED
TR A K AN SR B 7E 1k 75 TH D B ) LB
MAHEE 1 o AN B A SREUL B 0 iE
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33 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(d) (continued)

After inspection being done at the Dongguan Production Plant
by the relevant government authority, the Group received
an official notice for approving the resumption of limited
production of the Dongguan Production Plant. As such,
the Dongguan Production Plant resumed its operation and
production on 17 February 2020.

However, due to the suspension or limited service of
transportation facilities in certain area, certain workers in the
affected provinces and municipalities were unable to return to
production units in Dongguan as planned, which has resulted
in temporary drop in production of the Dongguan Production
Plant. The Novel Coronavirus Outbreak also adversely affected
the supply chain logistics and the Group has experienced delay
in the supply of raw materials from its suppliers. It is expected
that the Dongguan Production Plant will experience delay in
resuming to original production schedule and there will be late
delivery of products in the first half of 2020.

Under such special circumstances, the Group is currently
working closely with its suppliers to speed up the delivery of
raw materials and liaising with the customers to adjust delivery
schedule to minimise any negative economic impact on both
sides. The suspension and the temporarily lower than original
production level are likely to have a negative impact on the
Group’s future financial results. The Group will continue to
assess the impact of the Novel Coronavirus Outbreak on the
financial performance and closely monitor the development of
the Novel Coronavirus Outbreak and the Group’s exposure to
the risks and uncertainties in this connection. The Group will
take appropriate measures as necessary.
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